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Donald B.JReynolds

Certiﬁeizi%bizc Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Corning
Corning, California

I'have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Corning,
California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the City's management, My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on my audit.

T conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Americaand the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation, I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2012, and the respective
changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thercof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report dated January 31,
2013, on my consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on niy tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provicde an opinion on the
internal conirol over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of my audit. '

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through
9, and the Supplementary Information and Schedule of Funding Progress and the Budgetary
Comparison Schedules presented on pages 46 through 90 are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted
in the United Sates of America. [ have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally
of inquiries of

1438 Oregon Street, P.O. Box 994508 Redding, CA 96099-4508 (530) 246-2834 fax (530) 244-0331
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The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Corning
Corning, California

management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, I did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as a whole. The combining and individual
nonmajor fimd financial statements, as well as the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget, Circular A-133, Audits of Stafes, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied to the basic financial statements and, in my opinion, are fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory
section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial .
statements and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on if.

f@»&»@ﬁj&\a

Donald R. Reynolds, CPA
Redding, California
January 31, 2013
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTRODUCTION

This section of the Comprehensive Ammual Financial Report provides a narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the City of Corning for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.
This should be read in conjunction with the transmittal letter and the financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The assets of the City of Corning exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2012 by $16.67
million (net assets). Of this amount, $3.02 million (unrestricted, assigned net assets) may
be used fo meet the government’s ongoing obligations fo its citizens and creditors.

e Total net assets increased by $1.16 million, with an increase of $1.5 million in net assets
of governmental activitics, and a decrease of $341 thousand in business-type activities.

¢ Governmental funds, on June 30, 2012, reported combined Net Assets of $8.29 million,
an increase of $1.5 million in comparison to the previous fiscal year. These net assets are
largely investments in capital assets with $2.39 million (28.823%) being unreserved and
available for spending (unreserved fund balance).

e As of June 30, 2012, the General Fund had a year-end fund balance of $1.3 million, $498
thousand of which was unreserved. The unreserved General Fund balance at June 30,
2012, vepresented 11.52% of 2011-2012 General Fund expenditures of $4.32 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The basic financial statements are comprised of three components:
1. Government-wide financial statements,
2. Fund financial statements, and
3. Notes to the financial statements.
This report also includes other supplementary information as well as a Single Audit section that
presents required reports on infernal controls and compliance with laws and regulations related to

federal grants.

This set of statements is designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assefs (Statement 1) presents information on all the City’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference reported as nef assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

assets may setve as an indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Corning is
improving or declining.

The statement of activities (Statement 2) presents information showing how the government’s net
assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, such as for uncollected taxes and earned but not yet
used vacation time.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activifies) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees or are required by grantor agencies to be accounted for in this fashion (business-fype
activities). The governmental activities include general government, public safety, public works,
planning, commumity development, and recreation and cultural. The business-type activities of
the City are water and sewer.

The government-wide financial statements are intended to include not only the City of Corning
itself (known as the primary government), but also its component units, entities for which the
government is considered to be financially responsible. Blended component units, although
legally scparate entities, are in substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from
these units are combined with data of the primary government. The City of Corning has no
reported component units.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used fo maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Corning, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Corning can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds, Governmental finds arc used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements,
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-ferm inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
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information presented for govermmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impacts of the government’s near-term
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the government fund statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Corning maintains 38 individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General Fund which is considered
the only major fund. Data from the other 37 governmental funds are combined info a single,
aggregated presenfation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Corning adopts annual appropriations for its governmental funds. As required
supplementary statements, budgetary comparison statements have been provided fo demonstrate
compliance with adopted appropriations. The basic governmental fund financial statements can
be found on pages 15-17 of this report,

Proprietary Funds. The only type of proprietary funds the City of Corning maintains are
enterprise funds. Enferprise funds are used to report the same functions as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements, The City of Corning uses enterprise funds
to account for its water, sewer and solid waste enterprises, as well as the airport and
transportation center. |

Proprictary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more defail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the water and sewer enterprises. Both of the City’s enterprise funds are
considered major funds. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages
18-20 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of
Corning’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that use for
proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 21-22 of
this report. The City administers three fiduciary funds, the Ridell Library Trust, the J.'T, Levy
Scholarship Trust and the Rodgers Theatre Fund.

Nofes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional important information that is

essential to the reader for a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and
fund financial statements.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. For the
City of Corning, asscts exceeded liabilities by $16.67 million at June 30, 2012, Net assets
increased by $1.5 million in Fiscal Year 2011-2012.

By far the largest portion of the City of Corning’s net assets (70 percent) reflects the City’s
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery and equipment), less any related debt
used to acquire those assels that is still outstanding. The City of Corning uses these assets to
serve its citizens and businesses; consequently, these assets are not available for spending.
Although the City of Corning’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Governmental Activities. Governmental activity expenses totaled $5.03 million in Fiscal Year
2011-2012. Program revenues totaled $437 thousand. General revenues and {ransfers totaled
$6.00 million. Tax revenues (70.75 percent) represented the largest share of general revenues
and intergovernmental and other revenues (13.33 percent) represented the second-largest share of
general revenues and transfers,

The largest portion of governmental activity expenses; public safety activities, represented 64.85
percent. 16.5 percent related to general government activities and street related activities
accounted for another 13.6 percent. Recreation and cultural activities represented 4.5 percent,
while community and economic development represented 0.6 percent.

Business-type Activifies. Business-type activity expenses totaled $3.69 million in Fiscal Year
2011-2012. Charges for services totaled $3.26 miilion, and lease, rents and other revenues
totaled $423 thousand. Sewer enterprise expenses totaled $1.95 million, with charges for sewer
services fotaling $1.55 million. Water enterprise expenses totaled $1.24 million, with charges for
water services fotaling $1.29 million. Solid Waste expenses totaled $424 thousand, with charges
for Solid waste services totaling $423 thousand. Airport enferprise expenses totaled $58
thousand, Transportation Center enterprise expenses totaled $16 thousand.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier in this discussion and analysis, the City of Corning uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. These funds have
been classified as governmental or proprietary.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as
a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year,
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As of June 30, 2012, the City of Coming’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $2.71 million, Of this total, 70.50% (1.91 million) was unreserved, which is available
for spending at the City’s discretion.,

General Fund, The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Corning. In 2011-
2012, there was a surplus of General Fund revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other uses in the amount of $319,028. The City Departments spent $90,192
more than budgeted.

General Fund Revenues,

Sales and use tax revenues rose 33.33% from 2010-2011 to 2011-2012 as a result of improving
retail, particularly fuel and automotive sales

Property tax revenues declined 0.19% from 2010-2011 t0 2011-2012,
Franchise taxes declined by 10.52 % from 2010-2011 to 2011-2012.

Vehicle License Fees decreased by 5.24 % from 2010-2011 to 2011-2012. The State had finally
paid back one of its “Takings” from local government revenues making 2010-2011 higher than
normal. The state has also completely changed it method for allocating Vehicle License Fees
which may result in smaller increases in the future.

Transient occupancy tax decreased by 2.00% from 2010-2011 to 2011-2012, generally due to the
timing of hotel payments.

Intergovernmental revenues were down 27.51% from 2010-2011 to 2011-2012. The City
received additional grant revenues in 2010-2011 for numerous projects. 2011-2012 projects
were debt financed.

Charges for services and other revenues decreased by 8.09% from 2010-2011 fo 2011-2012, due
to a large decrease in Public Works/Plansing plan check and development application fees in the
prior year, continuing into the current year. Licenses and permits decreased by 18.64% from
2010-2011 t0 2011-2012,

Overall, general fund revenues increased 11.82%, from $4,163,542 in the prior fiscal year, 2010-
2011, to $4,677,920 in fiscal year 2011-2012, not including transfers.

Change from

2011/12 % of Total 2010/11

Sales, use and other taxes $2,790,517 59.7% $ 697,555
Property faxes 487,247 10.4% (904)
Franchise taxes 107,924 2.3% (12,694)
Vehicle license fees 537,374 11.5% (29,723)
Transient Occupancy tax 260,693 5.6% (5,317)
Other taxes 11,313 0.2% (7,545)

Intergovernmental 255,548 5.5% (96,968)
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Interest 1,367 0.1% (410)

Licenses and permits 69,096 1.5% (15,833)
Other 156.526 3.3% (13.784)
Total revenues $ 4,677,920 100.0% $ 514,377

General Fund expenditures. General Fund expenditures totaled $5.11 million in 2010-2012.

Change From

- 2011/12 % of Total 2010/11
General government $ 539,720 125%  $  (15,531)
Public safety 3,255,027 75.3% 79,867
Transportation 285,172 6.6% 99,458
Cultural, Parks and Recreation 220,773 5.1% (9,819)
Community/Economic development 22,000 5% 500
Debt Service - -% -
Capital outlay - -% -
Total expenditures $ 4,322,692 100.0%  $ 154,655

General government expenditures decreased 2.77%. Public safety expenditures increased 2.52%.
General Fund Transportation expendifures increased 53.55%. Culture, parks and trecreation
expenditures decreased 4.26%. Community/ Economic development expenditures rose 2.33%.
Retirement of principal and interest charges is nominal in the General Fund. No capital outlay
was expended in 2011-2012 to purchase the City’s new additions to fixed assets.

General Fund analysis General Fund expenditures exceeded General Fund revenues by
$355,228 in fiscal year 2011-2012,

This was intentional. During the budget adoption process each June, the City Council allocates
most of the “Available Reserve” (prior year savings) to one time capital projects identified in the
“Long Term Capital Improvement Program”.

The highest priority has been street rehabilitation,

Proprietary funds. The City’s enterprise funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Highlighis of the annual activity for
these funds have already been provided in the discussion of the business-type activities.
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

A detailed budgetary comparison schedule for the year ended June 30, 2012, is presented as

required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements. The
following summarizes the final General Fund budget compared to actual results for 2011-2012:
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Final

Budget Actual
Revenues $ 3,823,430 $ 4,677,920
Other Sources Transfers in 5,000 800
Total Revenues and
Other Source - 3,828,430 4,678,720
Expenditures and Transfers-out (4.269.500) (4,359,692)
Excess (Deficiency) $ (441,070 $ 319,008

The City Departments spent $90,192 more than budgeted.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Cuapital assets, The City of Corning’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business type activities as of June 30, 2012, amounts fo $16.03 million (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, park improvements, buildings and
improvements, vehicles and equipment, streets, bikeways, water, sewer and storm drain systems.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets may be found in note 3 to the basic financial
statements.

Long-term debt. At June 30, 2012, the City had $135 thousand in governmental activity debt
outstanding. The City had $10.35 million in business-type activity debt outstanding. Details on
the long-term debt can be found in footnote number 4 of the financial statements. During the
current year the City added $613 thousand in long-term debt and retired $261 thousand in long-
term debt.

Additional information about the nature and type of long-term debt can be found in Note 4 to the
basic financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

The City has been fortunate in past years to have maintained strong retail sales in the fraveler
services market which made up for the decline in auto sales. The three large travel centers,
Love’s, Petro and Travel Cenfers of America along with three freeway sited service stations and
four local fuel and food maris are the larges retail sales group in City with excellent income from
fuel and fuel related sales.

Sales Tax from Fuel, Automobile and Truck sales are increasing again while other retailers in

Corning have remained stable. There was a 32% increase in sales and use tax in Corning in
2011-2012 with total sales tax received in the amount of $2,771,455.
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The State “triple flip”, mentioned later in this analysis, is the name applied to the State
Legislative taking of focal tax income to “balance” the state budget. The reader can not easily
determine the actual total retail sales in Corning from this information due to the_complicated
formulas put in place by the State in order to take a portion of local sales tax.

Other City operations remain in good financial shape. The Water Enterprise invested in one new
well in 2011-2012, to support the City’s ISO Class II rated Water System, City Council enacted
a five year series of annual rate increases intended to maintain a stable cash flow and to assure
investors of the stability of the City.

The Sewer Enferprise is sefting aside net revenues to fund future repairs and facility replacement.
The decline in home building leaves the Sewer Capital Fund short of funds for debt service on
the plant expansion bonds, but the Sewer Operating Fund is pledged to makeup any shortage of
revenue from new development. The Sewer Rates are increased annually as part of a long range
plan adopted by the City Council.

The greatest impact of the recession hits Sireet Maintenance which is funded by State gas taxes
and the City General Fund, Few people realize that State gas taxes are a small portion of a City’s
investment in Roads. The City received only $117,109 in State Gas Taxes during the year; that is
only $15.28 per year per resident. The balance of the funds spent on roads comes from the City
General Fund.

Even in these economic times, the City is pursuing an aggressive Park development program and
planning for the future. This year the City was awarded $282,824, in State Proposition 84 Grant
Funds to complete the development of a major new park in the southwest “quadrant” of the City.
The city added 17 new acres of developed parks. The City continued to position itself to
purchase additional land for future development in order to meet the needs of future population
growth.

BUDGETARY CUTS MADE AND CONTINUING

The City continued another full year of personnel cost reductions through the “Furlough” of all
City Employees every other Friday in 2011-2012, a savings of 10% of employee costs. Some
Capital Improvements routinely funded from the City General Fund in the past, were postponed.

The City Management Team moved quickly to reduce spending as soon as the lower sales tax
figures were revealed in January 2009. Four Public Works vacancies were left unfilled. By June
2009, the City Counci! and management were reviewing reductions in personnel costs through a
cycle of one day per pay period layoffs of all city employees. These “Furloughs”, as people like
to call them, began in October 2009, as soon as the City had firm financial information to share
with the City Employees who all agreed to the Plan to reduce employee costs by 10%. Note that
Furloughs have been ended effective Dec. 31, 2012-all employees are back to regular work
schedules.

There are only 41 full time City Employees and the City has a huge investment in them. This
makes the Employees the greatest asset of the City, a Service Company, and well worth retaining
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by maintaining stable employment. A Police Officer, for example costs the City between
$150,000 and $200,000 in training and on-the-job experience. Most people do not realize the
City of Corning operates with very little overhead. The Police Departments leads through the
Chief and Three Sergeants; there are no Captains or Licutenants. The Fire Department, an ISO
Class 4 rated agency, is a ninefy-nine year old Volunteer Department with no full fime
firefighters, saving the City over $1 million per year, The entire Public Works Department has
seven Maintenance Workers and a field supervisor. Only the Director and the Public Works
Secretary are in the office. All City Employees have direct service contact with the public.

STATE’S CONTINUED FAILURE TO RESOLVE STATE FINANCES

As noted in the past, the State of California’s continued budget problems still impact the positive
trends in local revenue growth, Lingering State revenue/expenditure imbalances will continue to
adversely affect the City.

Since 1992, the State has diverted (taken) nearly $2 million in local property tax to fund the State
responsibilites.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Cormning’s financial
condition for all those with an interest in the City’s finances., Should the reader have further

questions, please contact John Brewer, City Manager, City of Corning, 794 Third Street,
Corning, California 96021,
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CITY OF CORNING
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2012

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Investments
Intergovernmental Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Notes Receivable (C.D.B.G.)
Receivable from Other Governments
Cther Receivable
Inventory
Due From Other Funds
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Cash
Notes Receivable (C.D.B.G.)
Net Capital Assets (Note 2):
Enterprise Funds
General Plant & Equipment
Total Capital Assets, net
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages/Payroll Taxes
Accrued Interest Payable
Deposits
Deferred Revenue
Current Portion of non-current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Notes, Bonds and Certificates Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences
Capital Leases

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Nonspendable - Investment in Capital Assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Debt Service
Assigned

Total Net Assets

See accompanying nofes to
the basic financial statements,

Statement 1

Primary Government

Governmental

Activities

Business
Activities

Total

$ 2,625536 §

1,881,063 § 4,506,599

126,678 - 126,678

- 236,917 236,917

5,000 - 5,000
20,296 - 20,296
5,243 - 5,243

- 71,860 71,860
114,149 (114,150) ()
2,896,902 2,075,690 4,972,592
- 977,778 977,778
4,428,626 - 4,428,626
- 16124326 16,124,326
6,035,514 - 6,035,514
6,035,514 16124326 22,159,840
10,464,140 17,102,104 27,566,244
13,361,042 19,177,794 32,538,836
140,749 199,601 340,350
29,008 7,095 36,103

- 125,080 125,080

- 67,723 67,123
4,444,035 . 4,444,035
88,500 224,288 312,788
4,702,292 623,787 5,326,079
- 10,121,933 10,121,933

323,950 49,174 373,124
47,141 - 47,141
371,091 10,174,107 10,542,198
5,073,383 10,794,894 15,868,277
5,899,873 5,726,331 11,626,204
- 2,023,193 2,023,193
2,387,786 633,376 3,021,162

$ 8,287,659 § 8,382,900 § 16,670,559
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CITY OF CORNING

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended June 30, 2012

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Govermmental Activities:
General Government:
Ciiy Council
City Administration
City Clerk
City Treasurer
City Finance
General Government
Total General Govermment
Public Safety and Judiciary:
Legal Services
Police
Police Dispatch
Animal Control
Fire
Total Public Safety and Judiciary
Transportation:
Airport
Streets
Total Transportation
Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Library
Theater
Parks and Recreation
Total Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Community/Economic Development:
Economic Development

Total Community/Economic Development

Business-Type Aclivities

Sewer

Water

Solid Waste

Airport

Transportation
Total Business-Type Activities
Totat

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.

Statement 2
Program Revenues
Operating Capital Net
Charges for  Grants and Grants and {(Expense)
Expenses Services  Contributions Contributions Revenue

5 33,179 § - - $ - (33,179
96,051 - - - {96,051}
11,675 - - - (11,675)
866 - - - (860)
68,421 - - - {68,421}
622,455 97,999 - - (524,456)
832,647 97,999 - - (734,648)
74,426 - - - (74,426)
2,080,265 30,120 180,213 - (1,869,932}
467,579 - - - (467,579}
97,924 - - “ (97,924)
539,755 - - - (539,755}
3,259,949 30,120 180,213 - (3,049,016}
682,674 - - 935,915 (586,759
682,674 - - 95,915 {586,759)
17,497 - - - (17,497)
1,798 - - - (1,798)
207,112 39,113 - - (167,999
226,407 33,113 - - {187,294)
30,854 - - 91,220 60,366
30,854 - - 91,220 60,366
1,954,336 1,548,352 - - {405,984)
1,240,471 1,285,445 - - 44,974
423,809 423,069 - - (740)
58,170 - - - (58,170)
16,270 - - - {16,270}
3,693,056 3,256,866 - - {436,190)
$ 8725587 § 3,424,098 180,213 187,135 (4,934,141}

City of Corning Financial Section Page {3




CITY OF CORNING

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended June 30, 2012

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:

Net (Expense)/Revenue

General Revenues:
Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Property Taxes
Franchise Taxes

Vehicle License Fees
Transit Occupancy Tax

Other Taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment Income

Donations
Other

Transfers - Internal Activity
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Prior Period Adjustment
Residual Equity Transfers In (Out)
Net Assets - Ending of Year

See accompanying notes to

Governmental
Activities

Business
Activities

Statement 2
{Continued)

Total

$ (4,497,951) §

(436,190) $ (4,934,141)

2,790,517 - 2,790,517
487,247 - 487,247
107,924 - 107,924
537,374 - 537,374
260,693 - 260,693
128,422 - 128,422
812,335 - 812,335
5,655 5,948 11,603
906,604 . 906,604
(37,935) 90,425 52,490
800 (800) -
5,999,636 95,573 6,095,209
1,501,685 (340,617) 1,161,068
6,785,974 8723517 15,509,491
$ 8287,659 $ 8382900 $ 16,670,559

the basic financial statements. City of Corning Financial Section Page 14
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CITY OF CORNING Statement 3

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30,2012
Non-Major Total
General Governmental Governmenial
ASSETS Fund Funds Funds
Cash and Investments 3 1,340,441 $ 1,285,095 $ 2,625,536
intergovernmentat Receivable 1,731 124,947 126,678
Accounts Receivable - - -
Notes Receivable (C.D.B.G.) - 4,433,626 4,433,626
Receivable from Other Governments 20,296 - 20,296
Other Receivable 5,243 - 5,243
Due From Other Funds . - 114,149 114,149
Total Assets 1,367,711 § 5,957,817 § 7,325,528
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 30,728 $ 110,021 § 140,749
Accrued Wages/PayroH Taxes 29,008 - 29,008
Due to Other Funds - - -
Deferred Revenue 10,400 4,433,626 4,444,035
Total Liabilities 70,145 4,543,647 4,613,792
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Contingencics 800,000 - 800,000
Insurance - - -
Unreserved, reported in
General Fund 497,566 - 497,566
Special Revenues Funds - 1,010,417 1,010,417
Capital Projects Funds - 403,753 403,753
Total Fund Balances 1,297,566 1,414,170 2,711,736
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 5 1,367,711 § 5957817 $ 7,325,528

RECONCILATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALALNCE SHEET OT THE COVERNMENT-WIDE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Total Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds 8 2,711,736

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets
are different because:

Capital assets unused in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore

are not reported in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation of $ 2,674,170. 6,035,514
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds:
Certificates of Parficipation $ -
Accrued Compensated Absences (323,950)
Capital Lease (135,641) (459,591}
Net Assets of Governmental Activities 3 8,287,659

See accompanying notes to ) ) . . .
the basic financial statements, City of Corning Financial Section Page 15



CITY OF CORNING

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenues
Inferest
Licenses and Permits
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
City Council
City Administration
City Clerk
City Treasurer
City Finance
General Government
Total General Government
Public Safety and Judiciary:
Legal Services
Police
Police Dispatch
Animal Confrol
Fire
Total Public Safety and Judiciary
Transportation:
Streets
Total Transportation
Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Library
Theater
Parks and Recreation

Total Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Communify/Beonomic Development:
Economic Development
Total Community/Economic Development
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Other Charges
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditires
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt Proceeds
Transfers In / Out
Totat Other Financing Sources and (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances-Beginning of Year
Prior period adjustment
Fund Balances-End of Year

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.

Statement 4

Non-Major Total
General Goverpmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds
4,195,068 $ 117,109 § 4,312,177
255,548 652,702 908,250
1,682 3,973 5,655
69,096 - 69,096
156,526 138,108 294,634
4,677,920 011,892 5,589,812
25,028 - 25,028
72,454 - 12,454
8,807 - 8,807
653 - 653
51,612 - 51,612
381,166 33,107 414,273
539,720 33,107 572,827
74,426 - 74,426
2,075,343 4,922 2,080,265
467,579 - 467,579
097,924 - 97,924
539,755 - 539,755
3,255,027 4,922 3,259.949
285,172 397,502 682,674
285,172 397,502 682,074
17.497 - 17,497
1,798 - 1,798
201,478 5,634 207,112
220,773 5,634 226,407
22,000 8,854 30,854
22,000 8,854 30,854
- 346,378 346,378
4,322,692 796,397 5,119,089
355,228 115,495 470,723
(36,200} 37,000 800
{36,200) 37,000 800
319,028 152,495 471,523
960,050 1,280,123 2,240,213
18,4438 {18,448) -

1,297,566 §

1,414,170 §

2,711,736

City of Corning Financial Section Page 16



CITY OF CORNING

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Statement 4
{Continued)

Reconciliation of the Governmentat Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the

fo the Government-Wide statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets:
Net change in fund balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounis reporied for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities and changes in net asscts are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while
governmental activities report depreciation expense fo allocate those
expenditures over the estimated useful life of the assets:

Capital assets purchases capitalized
Capital Assets donated and adjusted
Depreclation expense

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-terim liabilities in the
Statement of Net Assets:

Capitat tease obligation principal payments

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
as expenditures on governmenial funds:

Accrued compensated absences

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

See accompanying nofes to ) ) ) . .
the basic financial statements. City of Corning Financial Section Page 17
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(204,561} T 1,052,165
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CITY OF CORNING
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 3¢, 2012

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable
Inventory
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Property, Plant, and Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation

Net Capital Assets

Loan Acquisition Costs
Accumulated Amortization
Net Loan Acquisition Costs
Resfricted Assets
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages/Payroll Taxes

Due to Other Funds

Accrued Interest Payable

Deposits

Current Portion of Non-Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Notes, Bonds and Ceriificates Payable

Accrued Compensated Absences
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:

Investment in Capital Asseis, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Debt Service
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to

the basic financial statements. City of Corning Financial Section Page 18

Enterprise
Funds

b 1,881,063
236,917
71,860

2,189,840

26,200,248

(10,169,380}
16,030,868

136,807
(43,349)
93,458
971,778
17,102,104
$ 19,291,944

$ 199,601
7,095

114,150

125,080

67,723

224,288

731,937

10,121,933
49,174

_1017L107
10,909,044

5,726,331

2,023,193
633,376

8,382,900
s 1929191

Statement 5



CITY OF CORNING Statement 6
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012
Enterprise Funds
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services
Sewer Charges i 1,548,352
Water Charges 1,283,720
Solid Waste 423,009
Connection Fees 1,725
Lease and Rents 29,800
Other revenue ‘ 60,625
Total Operating Revenues 3,347,261
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and Benefits 800,109
Utilities 279,194
Depreciation 667,132
Amortization 6,219
Other Expenses 1,487,850
Total Operating Expenses 3,240,504
Operating Income 106,787
NONOPERATING REVENULS (EXPENSES):
Interest Income 5,948
Interest expense {452,552)
Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) (446,604)
Income Before Contributions and
Transfers (339,817)
Operating transfers in {(out) (800)
Nei income (Loss) (340,617)
Net Assets-Beginning of Year - As previously stated 8,723,517
Prior period adjustment -
Net Assets-Beginning of Year - As restated : 8,723,517
Residual Equity Transfers In -
Residual Equity Transfers Out -
Net Assets-End of Year $ 8,382,900

See accompanying notes (o ) . ) ) ]
the basic financial statements. City of Corning Financial Section Page 19



CITY OF CORNING Statement 7
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

Enterprise Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Customers $ 3,210,967
Other Operating Cash Receipts 90,425
Payments to Suppliers (1,721,995}
Payments to Employees (799,673)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities 779,724

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating transfers from {to) other funds (800)

CASHFLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Interest Paid (452,552)
Repayment of Certificates of Participation 409,737
Loss on disposition of assets . -
Payments for capital acquisitions (697,654)
Net cash (used by) capital and
related financing activities (740,469)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts of inferest 5,948
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 44,403
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,836,660
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 1,881,063

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS
TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Operating Income (Loss) 3 106,787
Adjustments to Reconcile Nef Income to Net
Cash Provided by (Used by) Operating Activities:

Depreciation 673,351
Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable (49,243)
Decrease (Increase) in Inventory (712)
Decrease (Increase) in Other Assets (24,011)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 73,709
Increase (Decrease) in Wages Payable 1,810
Increase (Decrease) in Acorned Compensation (1,374)
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds 4,271
Increase (Decrease) in Interest Payable 334
Increase (Decrease) in Deposiis 3,344
Net cash from {used for) operating activities $ 779,724

Ses acconipanying notes to the
basic financlat statements.

City of Corning Financial Section Page 20




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



" BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to Basic Financial Statements




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



CITY OF CORNING Statement 8
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012
Private Purpose
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Investients $ 310,734
Total Assets $ 310,734
Net Assets
Held in trust for:
Scholarships 3 27,422
Library Systems 263,559
Theater ' 19,753
Total Net Assets 310,734
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 310,734

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF CORNING Statement 9
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012
Private Purpose
Trust
Additions:
Interest Income 3 466
Total Revenues 466
Deductions:
Scholarships 500
Capital Outlay 2,263
Other Deductions S —
Total Deductions 2,763
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (2,297)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In -
Operating Transfers Out (2,436)
Total Other Financing Source {Uses) (2,436)
Change in Net Assets (4,733)
Net Assets-Beginning of the Year 315,467
Net Assets-End of the Year $ 310,734

See accompanying notes to . . . . .
the basic financia! statements. City of Corning Financial Section Page 22



CITY OF CORNING

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2012

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies of the City of Corning (City), all
of which conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable fo governmental uniis.

A, REPORTING ENTITY

The financial reporting entity (the government) includes all the funds of the primary government (i.e., the
City of Coming as legally defined), as well as all of its component units, Component units are legally
separate entities for which the primary government is financially accountable. The government provides a full
range of services including police and fire protection; sanitation, water, and wastewater services; the
consfruction and maintenance of highways, streets and infrastructure; recreational activities and cultural
events,

The City is a general law city in the State of California. The City is governed by an elected City Council
consisting of five council members. These financial siatements present all the fund types of the City and its
component units, Blended component units, although legally separate entities, ave, in subsfance, part of the
City’s operations.

The City has determined that there is one potential component unit to be included within the reporting
entity, the Corning Redevelopment Agency. As of this year, the Cify has not funded the Agency, and as a
result there are no activities fo be included in the City's financial statements.

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Government-wide Financial Statements:

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting government
as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements
distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-{ype activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered fo be
separale accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts
that constitute its assets, liabilifies, fund equity, revenues, and expenditure/expenses. Funds are organized
into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds
within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating
fund of the City or meets the following criteria:

a, Total assets, liabilities revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or emterprise
fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; and

b, Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or
enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all govermmentat and enterprise

funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

{Coentinued on the following page)
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CITY OF CORNING

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

NOTI 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Centinued)
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Governmental Funds

General Fund: The General Fund is the primary fund of the City and always classified as a major find. It Is
used to account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other
funds.

Special Revenue Funds: Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for certain purposes.

Capital Praject Funds: The Capital Project Funds ave used o account [for resources restricted for the acquisition
or construction of specific capital projects or items. The reporting enfity includes thirteen Capital Project
Funds and they are used to account for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Fund: Enterprise funds are used to account for operations () that are financed and operated in a
manner similar fo private business enterptises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of
providing services fo the general public on a continuing basis be financed primarily through user charges, or
(b) where the governing body had decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public police, management control, accountability,
or other putposes.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds: Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a frusiee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds, These
include Expendable Trust, Pension Trust, and Agency Funds. Expendable Trusts are accounted for in
essentially the same manner as governmental funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets Equat
tiabilities) and do not involve measurement of resulis of operations.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used fo describe "which" transactions are recorded within the various financiat
statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the measurerment
focus applied,

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in item b. below.

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the "economic
resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate:

a. All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources” measurement focus. Only current
financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheet. Their operating statenients

{(Continued on the following page)
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CITY OF CORNING

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Measurement Focus {Continued)

present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds
use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources" measurement focus. The accounting objectives
of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net assets {or cost
recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent)
associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net assets.

c. Trust and Agency Funds are not involved in the measurement of resulis of operations; therefore,
measurement focus is not applicable to them.

‘When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, if is the government’s policy to use
restricied resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed,

Basis of Accounting

It the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, both the governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or
econonlic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds and agency funds are presented on the modified acerual
basis of accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
"measurable and available." Measurement means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount.
Available means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures
(including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation
bond principal and interest are reported when due.

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting, Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when eamned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used,

‘The City has elected to follow Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements, and not
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements after 1989, as presented by GASB Statement
Number 20.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY

Cash and Investments

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Assets, "cash, includes time deposits" includes all demand, savings,
accounts, and certificates of deposits of the City, For the Purpose of the proprietary fund Statement of Cash
Flows, "cash and cash equivalent” include all demand and savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or

short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Investments of the promissory note
trustee accounts are not considered cash equivalent.

{(Continued on the following page)
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CITY OF CORNING

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 3¢, 2012

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (Continued)
Cash and Investments (Continued)

The City pools idte cash from all funds for the purpose of increasing income through jnvestment activities. Cash
deposits are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 31. Investment income is recorded as
sevenue in the individual funds based on the computed average interest rate of all investments and the avetage
daily cash balance of each fund. For purposes of the statement of cash flows of the proprietary fund types, cash
and cash equivalents inelude all investments,

Interfund Receivable and Payable

During the course of operations, numerous fransactions oceur between individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds, Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified as "due to and
from ofher funds.” Short-term interfind loans are reported as "inferfund receivables and payables.” Long-term
interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as "advances from and to other funds." Interfund receivables and
payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Assets.

Receivables

In the Govetnment-wide statements, receivables consist of ali revenues earned at year-end and not yet
received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes, franchise taxes,
and police fines, Business-type activities report utilities as their major receivables.

The City records an atlowance for doubtful accounts on general accounts receivable based on the experience method.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such as
sales fax, franchise tax, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both
measurable and available. Nonexchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund
financial statements in accordance with modified accrual, but not deferred in the government-wide financial
statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned
only if paid within 60 days since they would be considered both measurable and available. Utility accounts
receivable compose the majority of the proprietary fund receivables.

Inventory

Inventory of supplies in the enterprise funds is valued at estimated cost under the first in, first out (FIFO)
method.

Compensated Absences

The City permits its smployees to accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused vacation and compensatory
time and to redeem such unused vacation time in cash upon death or termination of employment, or by extended
absence immediately preceding retirement, The employees are permitted to carryover, within limits, unused
vacation or compensatory time off from one year to the next. The total amount of unpaid vacation and
compensatory time off at June 30, 2012 has been determined and is reflected in the financial statements as

both a current liability and non-current liability, Sick leave, however, does not vest to the employees and is
payable only when sick leave is taken.

{Continued on the following page)
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CITY OF CORNING

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D, ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (Confinued)

Capital Assets

Capita! assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets {e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks,
and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assefs with an initial

cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at

historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or consfructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation,

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materiatly extend the
asset’s lives are not capitalized,

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized
value of the assets constructed.

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 10-40 years

Improvements 10-40 years

Machinery and Equipment 3-20 years

Utility System 5-50 years

Infrastructure 15-50 years
Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include cash and investments of the proprietary fund that are legally restricted as to their
use, The primary restricted assets are related to promissory notes and utility deposits.

Long-Term Debi

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assefs are used in governmental fund
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the govermment-wide or fund
financial stafements.

All long-term debt to ba repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as liabilities in
the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of notes payable and interfund Ioan
payables.

Long-ferm debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the find financial statements, The debt
proceeds are reporfed as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest reported as

expenditures. ‘The accounting for proprietary fund is the same in the fund statements as it is in the
government-wide statements.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D, ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (Continued)
Deferied Revenue

In the government-wide financial staternents, unearned revenue is recorded for transactions for which
revenues have 1ot been earned.

In the fund financial statements, deferred revenue is recorded when fransactions have not yet met the revenue
recognition criteria based on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The City records deferred revenues
when potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the
current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by the City before it has a legal claim
to them. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recoghition criteria are met, or when the Clty has a Jegal
claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and
revenue is recognized.

Equity Classifications

Beginning with fiscal year 2012, the City implemented GASB Statement 54 “Fund Balaice Reporting

and Governmental Fund Type Definitions™, This Statement provides more clearly defined fund balance
categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's fund balance more
transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on
the purposes for which resources can be used:

Nonspendable fund balance-amounts in fund balance that cannot be spent because they
are either not in spendable form (such as prepaids and inventory) or legally/contractually
are required to be maintained intact;

Restricted fund balance-resources that are constrained to specific purposes by their
providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government}, through
externally enforceable legal restrictions {cannot be spent due to their formy);

Committed fund balance-amounts are constrained to specific purposes by action of the
City itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority; removal or
modification of the restrictions on the use of these amounts can only be accomplished
if the City takes the same highest level action fo remove or change the consfraint;

Assigned fund balance-amounts the City intends to use fora specific purpose;
intent can be expressed by the City, a City created committee, or an

official designated by the City to which if delegates the authority; Informal
commitments (no formal action by the City);

Unassigned fund balance-Resources in the fund balance that cannot be classified into
any of the other categories. These amounts that are available for any purpose; positive
amounts are reported only in the general fund.

The City establishes fund balance commitments by passage of a resolution. This is

typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund batance commitment is
further indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the City.

{Continued on the following page)
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (Continued)
Equity Classifications (Continued)
Unreserved fund balance:

Designated for locat initiatives and program sustainability consists of funds that have been reserved
for one of the following two purposes:

1. Funds to operate a specific program or project in the current or future fiscal
years that have not yet been encumbered or authorized for definite contracts.

2. Funds that have been set aside for long-term program sustainability,
Unreserved undesignated includes the remainder of the fund balance that has not yet been allocated

for a specific purpose or has been identified in only a general manner where the City has
significant flexibility in changing the amount or nature of the designation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported
period. Actual resulis could differ from those estimates,

E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES

Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of the first Monday in March. Property taxes are
payable in two installments on December 10 and April 10, The City collects its share of properiy taxes
through the County of Tehama, The City relies on the competency of the County in determining its share of
the overall property tax collections.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods and/or services. If also includes all revenue and expenses not related to capital
and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities,

Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both governmental and
business-type activities,
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES (Continued)
Expenditures/Expenses {Continued)

Tn the fand financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows:

Governmental Funds - By Character: Current {further classified by function)
Debt Service
Capital Outlay

Proprictary Funds - By Operating and Nonoperating

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources. Proprietary
funds reported expenses relating to use of economic resources.

Interfund Transfers

Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity are classified as inferfund transfers,
For the purposes of the Statement of Activities, all inferfund transfers between individual governmental funds
have been eliminated.

¥, NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

Tn 2010, the city adopted new accounting standards in order to conform to the following Governmentai
Accounting Standards Board Statements:

GASB Statement 54 Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions requires a governinent
fo segregale their governmental funds equity, or fund balance, into five separate types (Nonspendable,
Restricted, Committed, Assigned and Unassigned).as opposed to the simple reserved and unreserved fund
balances previously used. This appears very straight forward and easy to implement. However, GASB 54
continues to require a government to display the first four of those types in a manner that distinguishes a
specific purpose within those types.

According to paragraph 22 of GASB 54, restricted, committed and assigned fund balance can be displayed either
in the aggregate on the face of the Governmental Fund Statements, or it can be displayed in sufficient detail so
that the major restrictions, commitments and assignments are evident to the financial statement user.

Paragraph 25 of GASB 54, if restricted, committed, or assigned fund balances are displayed in the aggregate on
the face of the governmental fund statements, then specific purposes information, as required in paragraph 22,
should be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Either way, specific purpose information must be
reporied in a manner that is evident to the financial statement

GASB Statement No. 57 OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans This
Statement GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions, to permit an agent employer that has an individual-employer OPEB plan with
fewer than 100 fofal plan members to use the alternative measurement method, at its option, regardless of the
number of total plan members in the agent multiple-employer OPEB plan in which it participates. Consistent
with this change to the employer-reporting requirements, this Statement also amends a Statement Number 43
provision that a defied benefit OPEB plan obtain an actual valuation,
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City of Corning Financial Section Page 30



CITY OF CORNING

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2012

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2012, are as follows:

Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets

Governmental Business Fiduciary
Activities Activities Total Funds Total
Cash and investments § 2,625,536 $ 1,881,063 3 4,506,599 $ 310,734 8 4,817,333
Restricted cash and
invesiments $ - $ 977,778 $ 977,778 § - $ 977,778

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is avatlable for use by all funds, except for funds required to
be held in a separate account by grant provisions or other agreement. Each fund’s portion of the cash and
investment pool or segregated accounts is displayed on the Statement of Net Assets and the Fund Financial
Staternent Balance Sheets as “Cash and Investments.”

Deposits - At June 30, 2012, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $5,769,034, of which $977,778
was restricted and $4,791,256 was unresiricted, The bank balance was $3,580,312, Of the bank balance,
$860,287 was covered by Federal depository insurance, and $2,720,025 was covered by collateral held in the
pledging bank’s trust department. Such collateral is in the City’s name,

Investments - The City reports ifs investments in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement Number 31. This standard requires that the Cify’s investments be reported at fair value with
realized and unrealized gains or losses in the statement of operations.

The California Government Code and the investment policy of the City authorize the City to invest in
obligations, participation, or other instruments of the U.S, Government or its agencies, state and municipal bonds,
commetcial paper of “prime” quality of ranking or of the highest letter and numerical rating as provided by
Standard & Poor’s Corporation or Moody’s Investor Service, Inc., bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements,
mortgage pass-through securities, collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed or other pay-through
bonds, equipment lease-backed certificates, consumer receivable pass-through certificates, or consumer
receivable-backed bonds, and medium-term notes {issued by U.S. Corporations) of a maximum of five years with
a minimum rating category of “A” by a nationally recognized rating service, notes, bonds, or other obligations
secured by a valid first priority security interest, and the State Treasurer*s Investment Pool (LAIF), The City

does not participate in Reverse repurchase agreements,

In accordance with authorized investment laws, LAIF invests in various structured notes and mortgage-backed
securities, such as collateralized mortgage obligations. As of Iune 30, 2012, 14.72% of LAIF's investment
portfolio was invested in structured notes and other assets-backed securities.
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NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

At June 30, 2012, the City’s investments and deposits were as follows:

Cash and Investments

Fair Value

Unrestricted Restricted Total
Deposits $ 2,549,583 $ 977,778 $ 3,527,361
Local Agency Tnvestment Fund 2,267,150 - 2,267,750
Total Cash and Investments 3 4,817,333 $ 977,778 5 5,795,111

Interest Rate Risk - As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the
City invests the bulk of its surplus funds in LAIF. The City has no formal policy regarding interest rate risk,

Credit Risk - As of June 30, 2012, the City’s investments in LAIF are not rated as LAIF is a State sponsored
investment pool.

Custodial Credit Risk - All securities are held in the name of the City. As a result, the City had no custodial credit
risk at June 30, 2012.
NOTE 3 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activities for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows:

Donations
Balance at Adjustments/ Balance at
June 30, 2011 Additions Disposals June 30, 2012
Governmental Activities:
Buildings $ 1,541,826 $ 5982 § -8 1,547,808
Parks 486,172 10,935 - 497,107
Fire Department 1,245,575 - - 1,245,575
Police Department 590,101 44,435 - 634,536
Machinery and Equipment 1,012,374 - {160,093) 852,281
Infrastructure 3,666,613 - 1,165,454 - 4,832,067
Total at Historic Cost 8,542,661 1,226,800 (160,093) 9,609,374
Less Accumulated Depreciation 3,414,299 3§ 204,561 § (45,000) 3,573,860
Governmental Activities Capital
Assefs, net $ 5,128,362 $ 6,035,514
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NOTE 3 CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Business-Type Activities:
Construction in Progress $ - 8 -8 -3 -
Land 838,088 - - 838,088
Building 2,652,532 - - 2,652,532
Improvements 74,308 - - 74,308
Machinery and Equipment 497,523 40,503 - 538,026
Utility Property 21,374,003 718,123 - 22,092,126

Total at Historical Cost 25,436,454 $ 758,626 $ - 26,195,080
Less Accumulated Depreciation 9,497,986 3 671,394 § - 10,169,380
Loan Acquisition Costs 136,807 $ - 3 - 136,807
Less Accumulated Amortization 37,308 § 6,217 $ - 43,525
Business-Type Capital Assets, net $ 16,037,967 $ 16,118,982

NOTE 4 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of the leng-ferm debt transactions of the City of Corning for the year ended June 30,

1959 2005 2005 Revenue
Clark Well Capital Certificates of Certificates of Refunding
Loan Leases Participation Participation Bonds
Leng Term Debt
June 30, 2611 $ - $ 134,563 $ 3,749,800 § 2,095,000 $ 4,050,000
Additions 613,000 - - - -
Deletions - - - - -
Repayment (4,563) (43,922) (80,400) (80,000) {52,000)
Long Term Debt
June 30, 2012 3 608,437 $ 90,641 $ 3,669,400 § 2,015,000 $ 3,998,000
Capital Leases

The City leases a fire engine. This lease has been, for accounting purposes, capitalized and included in the
Long-Term Liabilities section of the balance sheet. Future minimum lease payments are as follows. The lease

bears interest at 4.204%
Fire Engine

2012-13 3 47,308
2013-14 47,308
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NOTE 4 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Capital Leases (Continued)

Fire Engine
Total Minimum Lease Payments 94,616
Less: Amounts representing interest 3,975
Present value of future minimum lease payments 3 90,641

1999 Certificates of Participation

The $3,800,000 City of Corning, California 1997 Loan Anticipation Notes (the "Notes") were issued to
finance part of the cost of construction of improvements (the “Projects"} to the water and sewer enferprise
systems (the "enterprises”) located within the City of Corning, California (the "City"), pursuant to the
provision of section 53859, et. seq., of the Government Code of the State of California ( the "Act") and fo
Resolution No, 11-25-98-4 (the "Note Resolution"} adopted by the City Council of the City on November 25,
1997, Pursuant fo the agreement, on December 14, 1999, the United States Government (Rural Development),
offered to make loans in the amount of $4,000,000, and $322,000, the proceeds of which were used to pay off

the loan anticipation notes. The 1999 certificates of participation bear an interest rate of 4.375 percent.

The City of Corning Public Financing Corporation, (Corporation) a non profit benefit corporation is the
registered payee of the certificates. The City leases the water and sewer project assets from the Corporation.
Under the terms of the lease, lease paymentis are payable from net revenues of the project on an equal and parity
basis with the installment paymenis, Inferest is payable semiannually on April 1 and September 1. Principal
payments are each September 1 in accordance with the following schedule;

Installment Purchase Agreement

The City also entered inte an installment purchase agreement, with the Corning Public Financing Authority on
August 1, 2011 for the financing of the Clark Park Municipal Water Project. The funding was supported by
the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Utility Service Loan Program. The certificate of
participation is in the original amount of $613,000 and is payable in annual installments on March 1sf of each
year including interest at 3.25 percent.

Installment Payment Schedule for Certificates Installment Purchase Agreement
Clark Park
Series A Series B Municipal Water
Certificates Certificates Project
Maturity Date Principal Principal Maturity Date Principal
{September 1) Amount Amount (March 1) Amount
2012 8 64,400 $ 5,200
2013 67,200 5,400 - 20138 7,970
2014 70,100 5,600 2014 8,229
2015 73,200 5,900 2015 8,497
2016 76,400 6,100 2016 8,773
2017 79,700 6,400 2617 9,058
2018 83,200 6,700 2018 9,352
2019 86,900 7,000 2019 9,656
2020 90,700 7,300 2020 9,970
2021 94,600 7,600 2021 10,294
2022 98,800 8,000 2022 10,629
2023 103,100 8,300 2023 10,974
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NOTE 4 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Installment Payment Schedule for Certificates

Installment Purchase Agreement

Clark Park
Series A Series B Municipal Water
Certificates Certificates Project
Maturity Date Principal Priucipal Maturity Date Principal
(September 1) Amount Amount (March 1) Amount
2024 107,600 8,700 2024 ‘ 11,331
2026 117,200 9,400 2026 12,079
2027 122,400 9,800 2027 12,472
2028 127,700 10,300 2028 12,877
2029 133,300 10,700 2029 13,295
2030 139,100 11,200 2030 - 13,728
2031 145,200 11,700 2031 14,174
2032 151,600 12,200 2032 14,634
2033 158,200 - 12,700 2033 15,110
2034 165,100 13,300 2034 15,601
2035 172,400 13,900 2035 16,108
2036 179,900 14,500 2036 16,632
2037 187,800 15,100 2037 17,172
2038 196,000 15,800 2038 17,730
2039 204,700 16,500 2039 18,306
2040 18,901
$ 3,404,100 § 265,300 2041 19,516
2042 20,150
2043 20,805
2044 21,481
2045 22,179
2046 22,900
2047 23,644
2043 24,412
2049 25,205
2050 26,024
2051 26,870

Installment Payment Schedule for Certificates (Continued)

3 608,069

Of the amounts shown in this table for interest, principal and {otal payments for each period, approximately
fifty-seven percent (57%) of each such payment represents antounts expected to be paid with respect to Notes,
the proceeds of which are anticipated to be used for Water Enterprise System improvements and forty-three
percent (43%) of ¢ach such payment represents amounts expected to be paid with respect fo the Notes, the
proceeds of which are anticipated to be used with respect to the Sewer Enterprise System improvemenis.

2005 Certificates of Participation

In February of 2003, the Cily of Corning entered into an agreement with the City of Corning Public Financing
Corporation to sell Revenue Certificates of Participation (RCOPs) fotaling $7,120,000, Series A of the RCOPs in
the amount of $2,500,000 was used to defease and refinance the 1997 Certificates of Participation, The 2005
Series A Certificates bear an interest rate ranging from 2.75 to 5,75 percent. The payment of principal and interest

(Continued on the following page)

City of Corning Financial Section Page 35



CITY OF CORNING

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

NOTE 4 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

is derived solely from sewer and water revenue. The Series B Certificates in the amount of $4,530,000 will be
used to finance the construction of improvements to the City's wastewater treatment plant. These certificates
bear interest at 4.65 percent. Interest is payable semiannually on April 1 and September 1. Principal payments
are required each September 1 in accordance with the following schedule:

The City has agreed to acquire the assets constructed with the proceeds of the Series B Certificates from the City
of Coming Public Financing Corporation on the installment basis with the payments for the installment obligation
having parity with the 2005 Series B Revenue Certificates of Participation described above.

By agreement between the City of Corning and the Union Bank of California, N.A., on December 1, 2003 the
2005 Series B Certificates were paid off by the proceeds of the 2005 Revenue Refunding Bond proceeds, Series A
and Serles B, See reference to the 2005 Revenue Refunding Bond.

Installment Payment Schedule for Certificates
Series A Certificafes

Principal Maturity Date
Amount {August 15)
3 85,000 2012
90,000 2013
95,000 2014
100,000 2015
100,000 2016
105,000 2017
115,000 2018
655,000 2023
670,000 2027
$ 2,015,000

2005 Revenue Refunding Bond

In December of 2005, the City of Corning entered info an agreement with Union Bank of California, N.A., to sell
Revenue Refunding Bond in the amount of $4,268,000. Series A of the Bond in the amount of $3,820,000 and
Series B of the Bond in the amount of $448,000, along with other available money, was used fo refinance the 2005
Series B of the Certificates of Participation. The 2005 Series A Bonds bear an interest rate of 4,25 percent. The
payment of principal and interest is derived solely from sewer revenue. The Series B Bonds bear an interest rate
of 4,25 percent, The payment of principal and interest is derived solely from sewer revenue.

Interest is payable semiannually on April 1 and September 1, Principal payments are required each September 1
int accordance with the following schedule:

Installment Payment Schedule forr Bonded Debt

Series A Bonds Series B Bonds
Principal Maturity Date Principal Maturity Date
Amount {September 1) Amount (September 1}
3 49,000 2012 5 6,000 2012
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NOTE 4 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Installment Paymeni Schedule for Bonded Debt

Series A Bonds Series B Bonds
Principal Maturity Date Principal Maturity Date
Amount (September 1) Amount {September 1)
51,000 2013 6,000 2013
53,000 2014 6,000 2014
55,000 2015 7,000 2015
58,000 2016 6,000 2016
60,000 2017 7,000 2017
63,000 2018 7,000 2018
65,000 2019 8,000 2019
68,000 2020 8,000 2020
71,000 2021 8,000 2021
74,000 2022 9,000 2022
77,000 2023 9,000 2023
80,000 2024 10,000 2024
84,000 2025 10,000 2025
87,000 2026 11,000 2026
91,000 2027 11,000 2027
95,000 2028 11,000 2028
99,060 2029 12,000 2029
103,000 2030 12,000 2030
108,000 2031 12,000 2031
112,000 2032 13,000 2032
117,000 2033 14,000 2033
122,000 2034 14,000 2034
127,000 2035 15,000 2035
132,000 2036 16,000 2036
138,000 2037 16,000 2037
144,000 2038 17,000 2038
150,000 2039 18,000 2039
156,000 2040 19,000 2040
163,000 2041 19,000 2041
170,000 2042 20,000 2042
177,000 2043 21,000 2043
185,000 2044 21,000 2044
193,000 2045 22,000 2045
$ 3,577,000 $ 421,000

NOTE 5 OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

Generally accepted accounling principles reguire disclosure, as part of the Combined Statements - Overview, of
certain information concerning individual funds including:

A. Sepment information for certain individual Enterprise Funds. This requirement is met by Note 11.
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NOTE 5 OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

B. Summary disclosure of debt service requirements to maturity of all types of outstanding debt, This
requirernent is met by Note 4.

C. Summary disclosure of changes in General Fixed Assets by major asset class. This requirement is met by Note 3.
D, Summary disclosure of changes in General Long-Term Debt. This requirement is met by Note 4.

E. Excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds for the year ended June 30, 2012
are reflected in a schedule following the individual fund and account group statements beginning at page 91.

F. Deficit fund balances or retained earnings balances of individual funds at June 30, 2012
are reflected in a schedule following the individual fund and account group statements beginning at page 91.

G. The City uses interfund transfers to supplant the budgets of various funds using general and enterprise surpluses
to offset funding shorifalls with Council approval.

H. Deficit fund balances of $6,477, $5,757 and $24,198 exist in the CDBG Program Income Special Revenue
Fund, the Housing Element Special Revenue Fund and the 08/09 CDBG Special Revenue Funds resp ectively.
These deficits represent expenditures on housing project maintenance in excess of corresponding revenues.
The Deficits will be liquidated with future. CDBG funding.

I, Interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Interfund Receivable / Payable - Pooled cash interfund balances

Receivable fund Payable fund Amount
Traffic Mitigation Fund Alirport Fund kY 114,150

5 114150

NOTE 6 RETIREMENT PROGRAMS - REGULAR EMPLOYEES

A, PLAN DESCRIPTION

The City's retirement plan s part of the Public Agency portion of the California Public Employees Retirement
System (CalPERS), an agent multiple-employer plan administered by CalPERS which acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for participating public employers within the State of California, A menu of
benefit provisions as well as other requirements are established by State statutes within the Public Employees'
Retirement Law. The City selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS
and adopts those benefits through resolution, CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report.
Copies of the CalPERS' annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office - 400 P
Street - Sacramento, CA 95814,

B. FUNDING POLICY

The City contributes the employees requited contribution of 7% of their annual covered salary for all active plan
members in the City's retirement plan, The City is required to contribute the actuarially determined remaining
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NOTE 6 RETIREMENT PROGRAMS ~- REGULAR EMPLOYEES (Continued)

B. FUNDING POLICY (Continued)

amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The actuarial metliods and assumptions used are those
by the CalPERS Board of Administration, The required employer contribution rate for fiscal years 2010/11 was
14.198% for non-safety employees. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by Sfate
statute and the employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS.

C, ANNUAL PENSION COST

For fiscal year 2010/11, the City's annual pension cost was $220,213 and the City actually contributed $220,213.
The required contribution for fiscal year 2010/11 was determined as part of the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation
using the entry age normal actuarial cost method with the contributions determined as a percent of pay. The
actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.75% invesiment rate of return (net of administrative expenses); (b) projected
salary increases that vary by duration of service ranging from 3.25% to 14.45% and (c) 3.25% cost-of-living
adjustment. Both (a) and (b) include an inflation component of 3.00%. The actuarial vatue of the City's
retirement plan's assets was determined using a technique that smoothes the effect of short-term volatility in the
market value of investments over a two fo five year period depending on the size of investiment gains and/or
losses. The City's retirement plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability (or excess of assets} is being amortized as
a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2009 was
19 years.

D, THREE YEAR TREND INFORMATION - Employer Fool

(in thousands)

Annual Entry age
Fiscal Pension Net Normal
Year Cost % of APC Pension Accrued
Ending (APCY Contributed Obligation Liability
06/30/08 5 174,517 100.00% § - S 2,780,281
06/30/09 $ 169,846 100.00% $ - 5 3,104,798
06/30/50 $ 208,641 100.00% § - 8 3,309,065
E. FUNDING STATUS OF THE PLAN
Actuarial Unfunded/ Annual UAAL
Valuation Value of {Overfunded) Funded Covered Asa %
Date Assefs Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll
06/30/08 $ 2,547,323 $ 232,958 91.6% § 688,606 33.8%
06/30/69 8§ 2,758,511 $ 346,287 83.8% $ 742,981 46.6%
06£30/10 $ 2,946,408 b3 362,657 89.0% % 748,401 48.5%

A, PLAN DESCRIPTION

NOTE 7 RETIREMENT PROGRAMS - SAFTETY EMPLOYEES

The City's defined benefit pension plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City's retirement plan is part of the Public
Agency portion of the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) an agent multiple-employer
plan administered by CalPERS which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating
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CITY OF CORNING

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

NOTE 7 RETIREMENT PROGRAMS - SAFETY EMPLOYEES (Continucd)
A. PLAN DESCRIPTION (Continued)

public employers within the State of California. A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements are
established by State statutes within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. The City selects optional benefit
provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through resolution.
CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of the CalPERS' annual financial report
may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office - 400 P Street - Sacramenfo, CA 95814,

B. FUNDING POLICY

The City contributes the employees required contribution of 9% of their annual covered salary for all active plan
members in the City's retirement plan. The City is required to contribute the actuarially determined remaining
amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used are those
by the CalPERS Board of Administration, The required employer contribution rate for fiscal years 2010/11 was
42.226% for all employees. The contribution requirements of the plan members arc established by State statute
and the employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS.

C, ANNUAIL, PENSION COST

For fiscal year 2010/11, the City's annual pension cost was $529,991 and the City actually contributed $529,991.
The required contribution for fiscal year 2010/11 was determined as part of the June 30 2009 actuarial valuation
using the enry age normai actuarial cost method with the contributions determined as a percent of pay. The
actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.75% investment rate of return (nct of administrative expenses); {b) projected
salary increases that vary by duration of service ranging from 3.25% to 14.45% for safety members, and {c)
3.25% cost-of-living adjustment. Both (a) and (b} include an inflation component of 3.00%. The actuarial value
of the City's retirement plan’s asseis was determined using a technique that smoothes the effect of short-term
volatility in the market value of investments over a two to five year period depending on the size of investment
gains and/for losses. The City's retirement plan's unfunded actuarial acerued liability (or excess of assets) is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at June

30, 2009 was 20 years.
D. THREE YEAR TREND INFORMATION - CITY'S RETTREMENT PLAN - Employer pool (In thousands)
Enfry age
Fiscal Annual Net Normal
Year Pension Cost % of APC Pension Accrued
Ending APC Confributed Obligation Liahility
06/30/08 3 533,603 . 100.00%  § - 3 8,700,468
06/30/09 $ 581,321 100.00% $ - § 9,721,675
06130710 $ 596,211 100.00% % - % 10,165476

E. FUNDING STATUS OF THE PLAN

Actuarial Unfunded/ Annual UAAL

Valuation Value of {Overfunded) Funded Covered Asa %

Date Assefs Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll
06/30/08 § 7,464,928 $ 1,235,540 858% 3 914,841 135.1%
06/30/09 $ 8,027,159 $ 1,694,516 826% 3 973,815 174.0%
G6/30/10 $ 8,470,235 $ 1,695,241 833% § 955,981 177.3%

% 6/30/08 and 6/30/09 - Information is not available according to CalPERS Circular 200-050-09 issued
on July 9, 2012,
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CITY OF CORNING

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2012

NOTE 8 JOINT VENTURE

The City is a member of the Northern California Cities Joint Powers Authority (Authority) for liability insurance
and workers' compensation purposes. The following joint venture disclosures made in compliance with GASB
Code Section J50.103:

A, Description of Joint Powers Authority

The Authority is comprised of 20 Northern California Cities and is organized under joint powers agreement
pursuant to the California Government Code. The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and administer
prograims of insurance for the pooling of self-insured losses and to purchase excess liability coverage. Bach
member City has a representative on the Board of Directors. Officers are elected annually,

General Eiability Insurance: Aunual deposits are paid by member cities and are adjusted retrospectively to cover
costs. Each member city, including Corning, self-insure for the first $25,000 of each loss. Participating cities
shared in loss occurrences in excess of $25,000 up to $500,000 for fiscal year 2012. Coverage in excess of
$500,000 is provided through the California Joint Powers Insurance Risk Management Authority, a joint power
authority organized to provide excess coverage for its members. Specific coverage includes: comprehensive and
general liability, personal injuty, contractual liability, errors and omissions, and anto liability.

Worker's Compensation Insurance: Annual deposits are paid by member cities and are adjusted retrospectively to
cover costs. The City self insured for the first $100,000 of each loss. Participating cities shared in foss

occurrences in excess of $100,000 up to $500,000. For coverage above the $500,000 the city has purchased excess
coverage with limits of $5,000,000 per occurrence.

B. Condensed Financial Information of the Authority

Noted below is a condensed audited balance sheet of the Authorities Combined Worker's Compensation Insurance
and Liability Insurance Fund as of June 30, 2012:

Assets S 50,442,560
Liabilities 32,491,912

Fund Equity-Reserved for Insurance
Claims and Losses:

Co-Participants 17,911,311
City of Corning 39,337
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $ 17,950,648

C. Claims and Judgments

The City accounts for material liability claims and judgment in accordance with GASB Code Section C50.110.

When it is probable that a claim lHability has been incurred at year end, the amount of the loss can be reasonably

estimated, the City records the estimated loss, net of any insurance coverage under its self-insurance program. At

June 30, 2012, the City, in the opinion of the City Atiorney, had no material claims which would require loss

provision in the financial statements, Small dolfar elaims and judgments are recorded as expenditures when paid,
NOTE 9 RESERVES AND DESIGNATIONS OF FUND EQUITY

Under provisions of GASB Code Section 1800.121-123, a City may set up "Reserves" of Fund Equity to

{Continued on the following page)
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CITY OF CORNING

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

NOTE 9 RESERVES AND DESIGNATIONS OF FUND EQUITY (Continued)

Segregate Fund Balances which are not appropriable for expenditures in future periods, or which are legally set
aside for future use. Fund "designations” may also be established to indicate tentative plans for financial resource
utilization in future periods. The City reserves at June 30, 2012, are outlined below followed by explanations as
to the nature and purpose of each reserve:

Reserve General Fund Fiduciary Funds
Reserve for Contingencies $ 800,000 $ -
Reserve for Scholarships 27,422
Reserve for Library Systems 263,559
Reserve for Theater 19,753

A. Reserve for Contingencies
Amounts reserved for confingencies represent funds set aside to meet unusual and/or unexpected needs of the City.,
B. Reserve for Scholarships

The reserve for scholarships represents the funds balance of the JT Levy Trust Fund, Monies in this fund are
invested and the earnings are used to fund scholarships to qualifying students residing in the City of Corning.

C. Reserve for Library System

The reserve for Library System represents the fund balance of the RideH Library Trust Fund, which was given fo

the City specifically for improvement and expansion of the Coming Library branch of the Tehama County

Library System.

D. Reserve for Theater

The reserve for Theater represents the fund balance of the "Frank, Mary, Wealthy and Daniel Rogers Theater™

trust fund, the net income thereof to be used for the care and maintenance of the Rogers Theater Building.
NOTE 10 CONTINGENCIES

The City participates in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to

program compliance audits by the grantors. Accordingly, the City's compliance with applicable grant

requirements will be established at some future date. While the contingency for un-reimbursed expenditures could

potentially be material, the amount, if any, of which may be disallowed by the granting agencies can not be

determined at this time.

NOTE 11 REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

In 1985, the City established a separate and distinct Redevelopment Agency. The Agency is currently inactive
and has had no financial activity since its creation.

(Continued on the following page)
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CITY OF CORNING

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2012

NOTE 12 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees, perinits them to defer a portion of their safary until future
years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or
unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and
all income attributable to those amounis, properly, or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or
other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the Beneficiary. Participants’ rights under the plan are equal to
the falr market value of the deferred account for each participant,

NOTE 13 REGIONAL AGENCY

Ti is the opinion of the City's legal counsel that the City has no Hability for losses under the plan but does have
the dufy of due care that would be required of the ordinary prudent investor. No compensation, properly or
rights purchased with such amounts, or income atiributable to such amounts, propetty or rights was made
available to participants or other beneficiaries during the fiscal year.

The City is a party in the Tehama County Sanitary Landfill Agency. The purpose of the Agency is fo plan,

acquire, fund, construct, and operate alf solid waste facilities and services as provided in the health and safety
code and all other applicable codes and laws. In addition, the Agency has been formed for the purpose of reducing
the cost of reporting and tracking disposal and diversion programs by the individual cities and counties and related
activities.

NOTE 14 RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanation of certain differences between the government fund balance sheet and the government-wide statement
of net assets;

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconeiliation between fund balance - tofal governmental funds
and net assets - governmental activities, as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. One element
of that recompilation explains that "long-ferm" liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds”, The details of that difference are as follows;

Beginning of End of
the Year the Year

Capital leases payable $ (313911) % (135,641)
Other accrued Habilities (268,690) (323,950}
Certificate of Participation - -
Net capital assets 5,128,362 6,035,514
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental

funds to arrive at net assets - governmental activities Sy 4,545,761 3 5,375,923

Explanation of certain differences between the governinental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities:

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation

(Continued on the following page)
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CITY OF CORNING

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2012

NOTE 14 RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental
activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains
that "governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense." The details of
the difference are as follows:

Capital ouflay 5 350,122
Depreciation . {204,561)
Bond Proceeds -
Bond Principal Retirement -
Change in accrued Habilities (22,003)

Principal payments on capital leases

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activilies 3 123,558

NOTE 15 BUDGETARY PRINICPLES

Budget Data

The operating budget of the City is adopted by the City Couneil prior to July 1 each year primarily on a cash
basis. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budget amounts between divisions of a department within any
fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund require City Council resolution,

Budget information is adopted and presented for the general, special revenue and capital project funds. The
presentations represent original appropriations adjusted for supplemental appropriations, if any, made during the
year,

The City does 1ot formally adopt a budget for debt service funds. The bond documents are the controlling factor.

Portions of fund equity are recorded as reserves when segregation for future use is necessary and the funds are,
therefore, not available for future apportionment or expenditures.

Swmmary of Differences between Budgetnry Basis and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

(GAAP)

The following are the differences between the City’s budgetary basis and GAAP:

A The City does not budget for GASB 31 interest income

B The City does not budget for accounts payable or intergovernmental payables

C The City does not budget for benefit accruals

b The City does not budget for transfers from the debt service funds when revenue is in excess of
debt service requirements

E The City budgets for certain receivables and payables on a cash basis

F The City budgets for land to be held for resale as expenditure

G Encumbrances are not included in the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance

(Continued on the following page)
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CITY OF CORNING

NOTESTO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

NOTE 15 BUDGETARY PRINICPLES (Continued)

Budgetary Basis Reconciliation

Budgets are not adopted for the debt service fund except for the debt service funds of the Agency.

NOTE 16 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The City made certain adjustments to reflect adjustments to the cash held in the hands of the Bond Trustee.
These amounts are reflected in the statements as prior period adjustments.

NOTE 17 LOANSRECEIVBLE - CDBG/EDBG

Over the years, the City has entered into several grant projects which provide, in large part, funding for loans
for housing rehabilitation and economic development improvements. There are numerous related restrictions
on how the proceeds from loan payments and payoffs are used.

Many of the loans are deferred, both principal and interest. It’sthe City’s practice to not accrue interest on
the deferred loans until they either mature or are amortized and payments made. Some of the loans have, or
may, become uncollectable. As those events occur, the City’s practice is to review enforcement action on a
case by case basis. One of the currently outstanding economic development loans, interest bearing with a
principa balance of $170,000, has past its ten year deferral period and no payment have yet been made. The
City isin discussions with the borrower.

NOTE 18 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

These financial statements consider subsequent events through January 31, 2013 the date the financial
statements were made available to be issued.
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CITY OF CORNING
GENERAL FUND

Comparative Balance Sheet
June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and Investments
Interest Receivable
Accounis Receivable

Receivable from Other Governments

Qther Receivable
Due From QOther Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounis Payable

Accrued Wages/Payroll Taxes

Deferred Revenus
Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES

Reserved for:
Contingencies
Insurance

Unreserved, reported in
General Funds
Special Revenues Fund
Capital Projects Fund

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.
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Exhibit A-1

General
Fund

1,340,441
1,731

20,296
5,243

1,367,711

30,728
29,008
10,409

70,145

800,000

497,566

1,297,566

1,367,711



CITY OF CORNING
GENERAL FUND

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENULS:
Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenues
Interest
Licenses and Permits
Miscellancous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Generat Government:
City Council
City Administration
City Clerk
City Treasurer
City Finance Departitent
General Government
Total General Government
Public Safety and Judiciary:
Legal Services
Police
Pofice Dispatch
Animal Control
Fire
Total Public Safety and Judiciary
Transportation:
Streets
Total Transportation
Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Library
Theater
Parks and Recreation
Total Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Community/Economic Development:
Economic Development
Total Community/Economic Development
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance-Beginning as previously stated
Prior period Adjusiment

Fund Balance-Beginning as restated
Tund Balance-Ending

See accompanying notes to

the basic financial statements.  City of Corning Supplemental Section Page 47

General
TFund

4,195,068
255,548
1,682
69,096
156,526

4,677,920

25,028
72,454
8,807
653
51,612
381,166

539,720

74,426
2,075,343
467,579
97,924
539,755

3,255,027

285,172
285,172

17,497
1,798
201,478

220,773

22,000
22,000

4,322,692
355,228

800

{37,000}

{36,200)
319,028

960,090
18,448

978,538
1,297,566



CITY OF CORNING
GENERAL FUND

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balaaces - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2012

Resources (Inflows):

Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Property Taxes
Franchise Taxes
Vehicle License Fecs
Transient Oceupancy Tax
Other Taxes

Total Taxes

Intergovernmental Revenues

Interest

Licenses and Permits

Miscellaneous

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfers In

Amount Available for Appropriation

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):

City Couneil
Personnel Services
Material and Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total City Council
City Administration
Personnel Services
Material and Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total City Administration
City Clerk
Personnel Services
Material and Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total City Clerk

City Treasurer
Personnel Services

Total City Treasurer
City Finance Department
Personnel Services
Material and Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total City Finance Department
General Government
Personnel Services
Material and Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total General Government
Legal Services
Personnel Services
Other Services and Charges

{Continued)
See accompanying footnotes to

the basic financial staterments.

$

Exhibit A-3

Budgeted Variance With
Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Einal Amaounts Positive (Negative)
2,026,000 2,026,000 $ 2,790,517 § 764,517
496,100 496,100 487,247 (8,853}
108,000 108,000 107,924 {76)
500,000 500,000 537,374 37,374
260,000 260,000 260,693 693
18,000 18,000 11,313 {6,687
3,408,100 3,408,100 4,195,008 786,968
213,600 213,600 255,548 41,948
5,000 5,000 1,682 (3,318)
76,000 76,000 69,096 {6,904)
120,730 120,730 156,526 35,796
5,000 5,000 &00 (4,200}
3,828,430 3,828,430 4,678,720 850,290
18,000 18,000 18,620 (20)
900 900 1,367 {467)
6,000 6,000 5,041 359
24,900 24,900 25,028 (128)
66,935 66,935 69,702 {2,767)
1,350 1,350 1,126 224
2,100 2,100 1,626 474
70,385 70,385 72,454 (2,069
4,200 4,200 4,089 111
12,000 12,000 821 11,179
100 100 3,897 {3,797)
16,300 16,300 8,807 7,493
600 600 653 (53)
600 600 653 (53)
17,944 17,944 18,348 404)
20,491 20,491 3,084 16,807
324 324 29,580 (29,256)
38,759 38,759 51,612 (12,853)
149,163 149,163 163,326 (16,163)
189,142 189,142 24,052 165,090
7,083 7,083 191,788 {184,705)
345,388 345,388 381,166 (35,778)
62,440 62,440 74,426 (11,986}
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CITY OF CORNING
GENERAIL FUND

Comparative Statement of Revenuces, Expendifures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2012

Total Legal Services

Police
Personnel Services
Material and Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Police
Police Dispatch
Personnel Services
Material and Supplies
Other Services and Charges
‘Total Police Dispatch
Animal Conirol
Personnel Services
Material and Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Animal Control
Fire
Personnel Services
Material and Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Fire
Streets
Personnel Services
Material and Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Streets
Library
Material and Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Library
Theater
Other Services and Charges
Total Theater
Parks and Recreation
Persormmnel Services

Material and Supplies
Other Services and Charges

Parks and Recreation

Economic Development
Other Services and Charges

Total Economic Devefopment

Capital OQutlay
Operating Transfer Out

Total Charges to Appropriations

Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over

Appropriations

Ses accompanying footnotes to
the basic financial staternents.

}

Exhibit A-3
(Continued)
Budgeted Variance With
Amounts Actunal Einal Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
62,440 62,440 74,420 (11,586)
1,891,128 1,801,128 1,912,659 (21,571}
23,650 23,650 7,327 16,323
69,720 69,720 155,317 (85,597
1,984,498 1,984,498 2,075,343 {(90,845)
416,201 416,201 402,984 13,217
60,700 60,700 41,431 19,269
4,000 4,000 23,164 {19,164)
480,901 480,901 467,579 13,322
69,439 69,439 74,669 (5,230}
17,4438 17,448 4,141 13,307
5,900 5,900 19,114 {13,214)
92,787 92,787 97,924 (5,137
423,894 423,894 446,827 (22,933)
70,165 70,165 12,635 57,530
21,165 21,165 80,293 (59,128)
515,224 515,224 539,755 (24,531)
150,257 150,257 110,342 39,915
179,900 179,900 94,639 85,261
10,000 10,000 80,191 {70,191)
340,157 340,157 285,172 54,985
17,100 17,100 5,073 12,027
800 800 12,424 (11,624)
17,900 17,900 17,497 403
3,200 3,200 1,798 1,402
3,200 3,200 1,798 1,402
112,612 112,612 119,509 (6,897)
63,230 63,230 41,452 21,778
1,500 1,500 40,517 (39,017)
177,342 177,342 201,478 (24,136)
22,000 22,000 22,000 -
22,000 22,000 22,000 -
- - 37,000 (37,000}
4,192,781 4,192,781 4,359,692 {166,911}
{364,351) (364,351} § 319,028 683,379
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CITY OF CORNING Exhibit B-1
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2012
Special
: Special Special Gas Tax
Rural STIP Federal Gas Tax Gas Tax Improvement Subtotal
Planning Projects TEA Improvement Improvement #2107 (Carried
Fand Fund Fund #2103 Fund #2106 Fund Fund forward to
(Fund 105) (Fund 107) (Fund 108) (Fund 169) Fund 110) (Fund 111) next page)
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents b -3 - 8 43,890 % 55226 % 42236 § 13,176 § 154,528
Intergovernmental Receivable 21,000 - 45,753 5,868 5,062 6,906 84,589
Due from other funds - - - - “ “ -
Notes Receivable (C.D.B.G) - - - - - - -
Total Asscis $ 21,000 $ - 3 89,643 §$ 61094 § 47,298 § 20,082 % 239.117
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 8307 § - 3 -3 - 8 -8 1117 § 9,424
Accrued Wages/Payroll Taxes - - - - - - -
Due to Other Funds - - - - - - -
Deferred Revenue - - - - - - -
Total Liabilities 8,307 - § - 8 -3 -3 1,117 9.424
Fund Balances (Deficit):
Unreserved, undesignated 12,6935 - 89.643 61,054 47.298 18,965 229,693
Total Fund Balance (Deficit) 12,693 - § 89.643 $ 61094 § 47298 § _ 18,965 229,693
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 3 21,000 $ - 8 89.643 $ 61094 3% 47298 $ 20,082 3 239117
(Continued)

See accompanying notes fo
the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF CORNING
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Intergovernmental Receivable
Dug¢ from other funds

Notes Receivable (C.D.B.G)

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Acerued Wages/Payroll Taxes
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances (Deficit):
Unreserved, undesignated

Total Fund Balance (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

(Continued)

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.

Exhibit B-1

(Continued)

Rogers Planning Flood Subtotal

Subtotal Theater Energy Environmental Mitigation 0TSs2 {Carried
(Brought Restoration Grant Rev. FEMA Fund forward to
forward) (Fand 130} (Fund 131) (Fund 150) (Fund 152) (Fund 164) next page)
233,844 $ -8 -3 13,075 § 3,958 % 30,564 § 281,441
106,260 9,676 - - - - 115,936
114,149 - - - - - 114,149
454253 § 9.676 3§ - § 13.075 $ 3958 § 30,564 $ 511,526
21,842 § 25,748 § 3,517 § - 8 - % -3 51,107
21,842 25.748 3,517 - - - 51,107
432,411 (16,072) (3.517) 13.075 3.958 30,564 460,419
432.411 (16,072) (3,517} 13.075 3,958 30.564 460,419
454253 § 9,676 § - § 13075 § 3,958 § 30,564 $ 511,526
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CITY OF CORNING
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30,2012

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Intergovernmental Receivable
Due from other funds

Notes Recelvable (C.D.B.G)

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Acerued Wages/Payroll Taxes

Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances (Deficit):
Unreserved, undesignated

Total Fund Balance (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

{Continued)

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.

Exhibit B-1
(Continued}
CDBG
CDBG 90/STBG/491 CDBG Housing Housing Subtotal
Subtotal Program Inc. Grant Economic Reuse Acquisition {Carried
(Brought Unrestricted Fund Reuse (Fund 326, RLF Fand forward to
forward) (Fund 323, 820} (Fund 324) (Fund 325, 823) 821, 822, 824) (Fund 327) next page)
367180 & 7288 § 27205 § 69,021 33,106 § 37915 § 541,715
115,936 - - - - - 115,936
114,149 - - - - - 114,149
3,899.900 128,440 - 190.580 214,706 - 4,433,626
4,497,165 $ 135,728 § 27,205 § 259,601 247812 $ 37915 § 5.205,426
51,107 $ 7437 § -5 - - 8 - 8 58,544
3,399,900 128,440 - 190,580 214,706 - 4.433.626
3,951,007 135,877 - 190,580 214,706 - 4,492,170
546.158 (149 27.205 69.021 33.106 37.915 713,256
546,158 (149 27,205 69.021 33.106 37915 713,256
4,497,165 § 135,728 $ 27.205 § 259,601 247812 § 37915 8 5,205.426
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CITY OF CORNING
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Intergovernmental Receivable
Due from other funds

Notes Receivable (C.D.B.G)

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages/Payroll Taxes
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances (Deficit):
Uareserved, undesignated

Total Fund Balance (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

(Continved)

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.

Exhibit B~-1
(Continued)
Houghton Curbs and Wayfinding Lighting &
Subtotal Prop 84 Park Trail Gautter Maintenance Landscape
(Brought Bond Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
forward) (Fand 354) (Fund 356) (Fund 365) (Fund 370) (Fund 701) Total
802,224 § 10,435 5,848 478 1,202 § 639 § 820,826
115,936 - - - - - 115,936
114,149 - - - - - 114,149
4,433,626 - - - - - 4,433,626
. 5,465935 § 10,433 5,848 478 1202 $ 639 § 5.484.537
58,544 3 3.273 - - -3 44 8 61,861
4,433,626 - - - - - 4,433,626
4.492.170 3,273 - - - 44 4,495.487
973,765 7.162 5,848 478 1,202 595 989,050
973,765 7,162 5,848 478 1202 595 989,050
5465935 $ 10,435 3,848 478 1,202 § 639 § 5.484,537
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CITY OF CORNING Exhibit B-2

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
ang Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended June 30, 2012
Special Special Special
Rural STIP Federal (as Tax Gas Tax Gas Tax Subtotal
Planning Projects TEA Improvement Improvement Improvement {Carried
Fund Fund Fund #2105 Fund #2106 Fund #2106 Fund forward to
{Fund 105) (Fund 107) (Fund 108) (Fund 109 (Fand 110) (¥und 111) next pase)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental Revenues 3 22,000 $ - 3 90,385 % 35035 3 29,787 % 50,287 § 227,494
Interest 11 - 120 114 109 161 515
Other Revenues 9 862 - - - - - 9,862
Total revenues 31,873 - 90,505 35,149 29,896 50448 237,871
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
General Government 27742 - - 396 - - 28,138
Total General Government 27,742 - - 396 - - 28,138
Public Safety and Judiciary:
Police - - - - - - .
Total Public Safety and Judiciary - - - - - - -
Transportation:
Streets - - 28.181 17,633 32,155 137,805 215,772
Total Transportation - - 28,181 17.633 32,155 137,803 215772
Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Parks and Recreation - - - - - - -
Total Cultural, Parks and Recreation - - . - . . .
Community/Economic Development:
Economic Development - - - " - - -
Total Community/Economic Development -~ - - - - - -
Capital Outlay , - - - - - - w
Total Expenditures 27,742 - 28,181 18,029 32,155 137.803 243,910
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures 4.131 - 62,324 17,120 (2.259) (87.355) (6,039
Transfers In - - - - - - -
Transfers Out - - - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses - - - - - - “
Net Change in Fund Balances 4,131 - 62,324 17,120 (2,259) (87,355) (6,039
Fund Balances-Beginning of Year 8.562 - 27,319 43,974 49,557 106,320 235,732
Residual Equity Transfers In / Out - - - - - . -
Fund Balances-Ending of Year 3 12,693 $ - 3 89,643 % 61,094 §$ 47268 3% 18965 3 220,693
{Continved)

See monoavmzﬁzu notes & . . . :
the basic financial statements. City of Corning Supplemental Section Page 58
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CITY OF CORNING
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended Junc 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental Revenues
Interest

Other Revenues

Total revenucs

EXPENDITURES:
Current;
General Government:
General Government

Total General Government

Public Safety and Judiciary:
Police
Total Public Safety and Judiciary
Transportation:
Streets
Total Transportation

Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Parks and Recreation

Total Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Commumity/Economic Development:
Ecenomic Development
Total Community/Economic Development
Capital Qutlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Transfers In
Transfers Qut

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances-Beginning of Year
Residual Equity Transfers In/ Qut
Fund Balances-Ending of Year

{Continued)

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial stafements.

Exhibit B-2
(Continned)
Rogers Planning Flood Subtotal
Subtotal Theater Encrgy Eavironmental Mitigation OTS2 {Carried
(Brought Restoration Grant Rev. FEMA Fund forward to
forward) (Fund 130) (Fuad 131) (Fund 150) (Fund 152) (Fund 164) next page)
369,725 % 17,615 § - 3 - 21,018 6,559 3 414,917
1,480 - - 32 6 68 1,586
9,862 8.947 - - - - 18,809
381,067 26,562 - 32 21,024 6,627 435312
30,027 - - - - - 30,027
30,027 - - - - - 30,027
330,006 - - - - 3,509 333,515
330,006 - - - - 3,509 333,515
59,300 27,133 - - - - 66,433
399,333 27,133 - - - 3,509 429,975
(18.266) (571) - 32 21,024 3,118 5,337
(18,266) (571) - 32 21,024 3,118 5,337
450,805 (15.501) (3,517) 15,043 (17,066) 27 446 455.21¢
{128y - - - - - (128)
432411 8 (16,072) $ (3.517) § 13,075 3958 § 30,564 3§ 460,419

City of Corning Supplemental Section Page 60
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CITY OF CORNING Exhibit B-2

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS {Continued)

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended June 30, 2012
CDBG
CDBG 90/STBG/491 CDBG Houasing Housing Subtotal
Subtotal Program Inec. Grant Economic Reuse Acquisition (Carried
(Brought Unrestricted Fund Reuse (Fund 326, RLF Fund forward to
forward) (Fund 323, 820) (Fund 324) (Fand 325, 523) 821, 822) (Fund 327) next page)
REVENUES:
Intergovermmental Revenues 3 444201 § -8 -3 - 8 - 8 - 3 444,201
Interest 1,793 73 67 165 56 g9 2,253
Other Revenues ' 18,809 1,900 - 3,456 27,368 - 51,533
Total revenues 464,803 1,973 67 3,621 27424 99 497.987
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
General Government 30,027 " - “ - - 30,027
Total General Government 30,027 - - - - - 30,027
Public Safety and Judiciary:
Police 4,922 - - - - - 4922
Total Public Safety and Judiciary 4922 - - - - - 4,922
Transportation:
Streets 333.51% - - - - - 333.515
Total Transportation 333,515 - - - - - 333,515
Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Parks and Recreation - - - - - - -
Total Cultural, Parks and Recreation - - - - - - -
Community/Economic Development:
Economic Development 3,673 - - - - 2,923 6,596
Total Community/Economic Development 3,673 - - - - 2,923 6,596
Capital Cutlay 66,433 - - - - - 66,433
Total Expenditures 438,570 - - - - 2,923 441,493
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures 26,233 1,973 87 3,621 27.424 (2,824} 56,494
Transfers In - - - - - - -
Transfers Out - - - . - - -
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses - - - - - - .
Net Change in Fund Balances 26,233 1,973 67 3,621 27,424 (2,824) 56,494
Fund Balances-Beginning of Year 536,251 (2,122) 27,138 68,856 24,938 31,111 718,505
Residual Equity Transfers In / Out (18,448) - - (3,456) (19,256) 5.628 (31,532)
Fund Balances-Ending of Year 3 544,036 $ (149) $ 27205 % 69,021 §$ 33,106 % 37915 $ 743,467
{Continued}

See accompanying notes to . . .
the basic financial statements. O:uw of OOHEH—W mﬁ@ﬁHmBobﬂmH Section Mmh@ 62
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CITY OF CORNING
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balanee
Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental Revenues
Interest

Other Revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
General Governament

Total General Government

Public Safety and Judiciary:
Police
Total Public Safety and Judiciary
Transportation:
Streets
Total Transportation

Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Parks and Recreation

Total Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Community/Economic Development:
Economic Development
Total Community/Economic Developrment
Capital Qutlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances-Beginning of Year
Residual Equity Transfers In/ OQut
Fund Balances-Ending of Year

(Continued)

CITY OF CORNING

See accompanying notes o
the basic financial statements.
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Exhibit B-2
(Continued)
Houghton Carbs and ‘Wayfinding Lighting & Subtotal
Subtotal Prop 84 Park Trail Gutter Maintenance Landscape {Carried
(Brought Bond Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund forward to
forward) {Fund 334) (Fund 356) (Fund 365) (Fund 370) (Fand 701} next page)
463,002 % 282,824 % - 3 - - 5 - & 745,826
2,886 - 14 1 2 1 2,904
52,149 - - - 1,200 383 54232
518037 282.824 14 1 1,202 884 802.962
30,027 - - - - - | 30027
30,027 - - - - - 30,027
4.922 - - - - - 4922
4922 - - - - - 4.922
344 521 - - - - 755 345,276
344,521 - - - - 755 345,276
§.854 - - - - - 8.854
8.854 - - - - - 8.854
66,433 234,938 - - - - 301,371
454,757 234938 - - - 755 650,450
63,280 47,886 14 1 1,202 129 112,512
63,280 47,886 14 1 1,202 129 112,512
288,209 (40,724) 5,834 477 - 466 912,192
(18.448) - - - - - (18.448)
033.041 § 7,162 & 5848 § 478 1202 $ 565 3 1,006,256
Exhibit B-2
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CITY OF CORNING
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVEN Gwmu
Intergovernmental Rovenues
Imterest
Other Revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
General Government
Total General Government
Public Safety and Judiciary:
Police
Total Public Safety and Judiciary
Transportation:
Streets
‘Total Trangportntion
Community/Econornis Development;
Economi¢ Development
Total Community/Economic Development
Capital Chatlay
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Qver
{Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In
Total Other Fingneing
Sources (Over)
Excess of Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
Rasidual Equity Transfers In / Out
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT END OF YEAR

(Continued)

See accompanying notes to
the basic finandial statements,

Exhibit B-3
Rural Planning Fund (Fund 105) STIP Projects Fund (Fund 107}
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Badget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
29,000 22,000 (7.000) - -
- 11 Y - .
B 9,862 9,862 - -
29,000 31,873 2,873 - -
32,241 27,742 4,499 - -
32,241 27,742 4499 -
- B - 48,900 48,900
- - - 48,900 43,900
32241 27,742 4,499 48,900 43,900
{3.241) 4131 7372 (48,900) 48,500
(3.241) 4,131 7372 (48,500} 48,900
3,562
12,693

City of Corning Supplemental Section Page 66
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CITY OF CORNING
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental Revenues
Interest
Other Revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
General Government
Total General Government
Public Safety and Judiciary:
Police
Total Public Safety and Judictary
Transportation;
Streets
Tota!l Trangportation
Comunity/Economic Development:
Eeconomic Development
Total Community/Econemic Development
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Qperating Transfers In
Total Qther Financing
Sources (Over}
Excess of Revenues angd Other
Sources Qver (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

Restdual Equity Transfers In / Qut
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT END OF YEAR

(Continued)

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.

Exhibit B-3
{Continued)

Specinl Gag Tax 2105 (Fund 111)

Special Gas Tax 2107.5 (Fand 112)

Loea! Transportation Fund (Fund 114)

Variance Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable Favorable
Budget Actunl (Unfavorablc) Budget Actual {(Unfrvorable} Budget Actunl (Unfavorablc)
$ 51,096 50,287 (809) 2,000 2000 8 - - 8 13 -
300 161 (139) - 1 1 500 101 (399)
51,396 50,448 (43) 2,000 2,001 1 500 101 (399)
- - - - - - 2,500 1.889 §11
- - - - - - 2,500 1.889 611
$1,000 137.303 (55,303) 2,000 2,893 (893) 57,500 14,483 43017
81,000 137,803 (56,803) 2,000 2,893 (893) 57,500 14.483 43,017
. - - - - - 3975 (3.875)
31,000 137,803 (56,803) 2,000 2,893 (893) 60.000 20,347 39,653
(29,604) (81355} (57.751) u (892) (892) (59,500) {20,246) 39,254
¥ (20,604) (§7,355) (57.751) - B92)] s (892) (59,500) (20,246)} 8 39,254
106320 1422 48,859
18,965 530 $ 28,613

City of Corning Supplemental Section Page 68




69 a8eg uonoeg reyuswerddng Sururo)) Jo A0

- GST'E0T $ 9IE'0L 3
[€40) " -
321 ore'rs P24
000°01 - {0o0'01) FLE'EET $ | 618 (£06'+87) £EGLS w06y (1415} s
000701 - (o00'01) YLEEST (3] (556'¥87) £E6'LS Z6¥ (IrrLe)
08001 B 000°01 L56'66T 866'8T $$6'87E SIF'9T $81%501 009621
00001 - 000°01 099°L0E $26T $8501E 000'62 00¥'2E 007’15
- - - (goe's) £10°92 0LE'BL (586°2) S8L°0L 00289
- - (£0£) £L0°92 0LEST (585°7) $8L'0L 007°89
- - - {£85"9) Lit'Le 000'FF 21S"IE LLS'E01 651'TL
- - - (127'e) 6ZL 000 (99) PEL a0z
- st~ $ |- (z1e's) $ | 8899t % { oco'or +85'1€ £HS'E0L $ | 656'1L $
(PIquicacyon) enpYy PIpag (e1quaoavyury) Ty ppng {Mquaoavyuf) LNy elpng
DIQTIOAL,] OqTIOATT JquaoALy
BITELILA IDULLICA JUTMTA,
(LIT puRj) pun g 3uny3r] wRao] {911 puny)} pun] uoncIniy Syyea, (STT pun.) pun UonsZU0) dIFJELY,
(ponupuo))
-9 QX

‘SIUSLUISIELS [eroUeul DISeq 9L
o} sajou Buiduedwoosoe 3og

(ponumuo)

AVEA X0 AN LY (TIDLING) ADNY Y QNN
Mg / uf soysues], Amby Enpiey

AVAA O DONINNIOEE LY (LIDIIH@ TONYIVE ANOS

S50 IR0 pun samygrpradiy
(rapupy) JAQ sTmog
J0TI() PUT SONUIAY JO SEIOXE]
(0) so0unog
Buzpueuty YO [©O],
uf sy, Funned
(SISN) STOUNOS HONIINVNLI WEHLO

somypuddiy (=puL)
ANy SONEASY J0 85303
SomPIRdng 1oL
fopng Ede?
PrRmACIOASE SIDOU0ITKITANENGD) MO,
TAWdO[2ANT STWON0TT
3ustudO[aAS (] HUOUCOT/ANUNILIOD
UOGERIOdSUBIY, [I9],
9208
‘mopepodsunyy,
Augrotpy put ARFUS ORgnd IHOL
221[0d
Kmipag put Goyug snqng
JEREIURAGD (I TG,
JTILIDACL) [T
JUOERIAADLY TERMIDE)
quRLR
SN LIANAING

SHNUAADL [GI0T,
SONUOADY DI
189a03U]
SHNUIAZY [RIVUNLAT IO

SSHANBAIY

TEOT “0¢ dung popuy Jeax

[en)dy pue 1p5pag - (LIDIIAQ ADINVIVE QNILI W sasueq) pue
‘saanppuadXy ‘SOMUIANY JO JUIWNIELS SUUIQUEIe))

SAONNA HNONIATYE TVIOHTLS
- HONINFOD 0 ATID



CITY OF CORNING

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental Revenues
Interest
QOrther Revenues

Totn! revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current;
General Government;
General Government
Total General Government
Public Safety and Judicinry:
Police
Totl Public Safety and Judicinry
Transportation:
Strects
Total Transportation
Community/Economic Develepment:
Economic Development
Total Community/Ecenomic Development
Capital Qutloy
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Tronsfers In
‘Total Other Fingneing
Sources (Qver)
Excass of Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

Residual Equity Transfers In / Out
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT END OF YEAR

(Continued)

See accompanying notes (o
the basic financial statements.

Exhibit B-3
{Continued)

Rogers Theater Restoration Fund (Fund 130 Encrgy Grant (Fund 131} Plinning, Environmental Rev. Fund (Fond 150)
Varianee Varianee Yarianee
Favorable Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable} Brdget Actial {Unfavorable)
220000 [ & 17,615 (202.385) 40,604 | § - % {40,604) S - -
- - - - - - 32 32
- 8,947 8,947 - - - ~ -
220,000 26,562 {193,538) 40,604 - (40,604) 32 32
226,157 27133 199,024 40,603 - 40,603 - -
226,157 27,133 195,024 40,603 - 40,603 - -
(6,157 (571) 5,586 1 - (1) 32 32
{6,15T) (571) 5.586 1 «| 8 (1> 32 32
{15.501) (3.517) 13,043
3 (16,072) 3 (3,517) $ 13,075
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CITY OF CORNING
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Exhibit B-3
{Continued)

SAFE Grant 188

Housing Element Fund (Fund 308)

05/09 CDBG Foad (Fund 321)

Budget

Acgtual

Varinnce
Favorable
{Unfavorable)

Budget

Actunl

Varinnce
Favorable
{Unfavorable}

Budget

Actusl

YVarianee
Favorzble
{Un{avorable)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmentz! Revenucs $
Interest
Other Rovenues

26,284
76

20,284
6

Tota! revenues

29.360

29360

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Genernl Government

Total Genernl Government

Public Safety and Judiciary:

Polico

“Total Public Safety and Judiciary

Trmsportation:
Streets

‘Total Transpertation

Community/Economic Development:

Econemic Developtnent

300,000

3,673

796,327

Total Community/Economic Development

800,000

3.673

796327

Capital Qutlay

Total Expenditures

500,000

3673

796,327

Excess of Revenues Over
{Undet) Expenditures

(800,000)

25,687

§25,687

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In

67,000

{67,000}

Total Gther Finaneing
Sources (Qver)

£7,000

(67.000)

Extess of Revenues and Other
Seurees Crver (Under)
Bxpenditures and Other Uses $

(733,000}

FOND BALANCE (DEFICIT}, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
Residual Equity Transfers In / Out
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT END OF YEAR

(Continued)
See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements,

11,142

(11,142}

3 -

1,678

(1,678)

City of Corning Supplemental Section Page 72

25,687

758,687

14,877

(5,500)

35,064
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CITY OF CORNING
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Exhibit B-3
{Continued)

CDBG Housing Reuse (Fund 326, 821, 822)

Housing Acquisiton RLF Fand (Fund 327)

Honsing Rehabilitation RLF Fund (Fund 328)

Buodget

Agtual

Variance
Favorable
{Unlavorable)

Budpat

Actual

Varianco
Favorable
{(Unfavorable)

Budget

Actunal

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental Revernes s
Interest
Qther Revenues

500

27.368

(444)
21,368

95

96

Total revenues

500

27424

26,924

96

&

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Genernl Government;
General Government

Totnl General Government

Public Safety and Judiciary:
Police

Total Public Safety and Judiciary

Transportation:
Streets

Total Transportation

Community/Eoonornic Development:
Economic Development

2,523

(2.523)

1,750

(1,750)

Tote! Community/Ecotiomic Development

2923

(2.923)

1,750

(1.750)

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

2,923

(2.923)

1,750

(1,750)

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

(2.524)

2.824)

(1,654)

(1.654)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In
Total Other Financing
Sources (Over)

{57,000)

$7,000

Excoss of Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses 5

(66,500

27424

93,924

(2.328)

(2.824)

{1,654

o

(1,654)

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT BEGINKING OF YEAR
Residual Equity Transfers In / Qut
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT END OF YEAR

{Continued)
See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.

24538

(19,256

33,106

31,111

9.628

b 37915
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CITY OF CORNING
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Exhibit B-3
(Continued)

Yost Field Fund (Fund 352)

Prop 34 Parlc Bond Fund (Fund 354)

Honghten Trafl Fund (Fund 356}

Budgpcet

Actual

Variance
Faverable
(Unfavorable}

Budypoet

Agtual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfaverabie)

Budget

Varianee
Favorable
Agtunl (Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental Revenues $
Interest
Other Revenues

- 10
- 616

616

4,276,800

282,824

282,824

{4,276,300)

Total revenues

- £26

626

4,276,300

282,824

(3,093,976}

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Goneral Government

Total General Government

Public Safety and Judiciary:
Police

Total Public Safety and Judiciary

Transportation:
Streets

Total Transportation

Cultur, Parks and Recretion
Parks and Recreation

Total Cultural, Parks and Recreation

Community/Economic Development;
Ecanotnic Development

Total Community/Economic Development

Capital Outlay

4,276,800

234,938

4,041,562

Totz! Expenditures

4,276,800

234,938

4041862

‘Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

47,886

47,386

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
CQperating Transfers In

Total Other Financing
Sourees (Crver)

Exeess of Reverues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses 2

- 626 [ 8

626

47,386

47,886

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
Residual Equity Transfers In / Qut
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT END OF YEAR

. See.accompanying notes o
ﬁOoﬂﬂwﬁm asic financial statements.

3818

3 4,544

(40,724}

7,162
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CITY OF CORNING
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Kxpenditures,
and Changes in FUND BALANCE (DEFICIY) - Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental Revenues
Interest
Other Revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
General Government
Total Genoral Govertment
Public Safety and Judiciary:
Police
Total Public Safety and Judiciary
‘Transportntion;
Streets
Total Fransportation
Cultural, Parks and Reercation
Parks and Recreation
Total Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Community/Economic Develepment:
Economic Development
Total Commumity/Economic Development
Capital Qutlay
Total Bxpenditures
Excess of Revenues Qver
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Tronsfers In
Operating Transfers Out
Total Other Financing
Soarces (Over)
Excess of Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
Residual Equity Trensfers In / Out
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), AT ENI? OF YEAR

{Continsedpccompanying notes te
the basic financial statements.

Exhibit B-3

Lighting & Landscape Fend (Frnd 702)

Lighting & Landscape Fund (Fand 703)

Lighting & Landseape Fund (Fund 704)

Variznee Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budgot Actunl {Unfavorable) Bndget Actual {Unfavorable)
- - . s -ls - - - -
P 1 1 100 29 (71 50 14 (36)
1,090 385 {207y 2,900 4.263 1,363 4,775 4,773 {2)
1,090 884 {206) 3,000 4292 1,292 4,825 4,787 (38)
900 755 145 3,800 1,042 2.75% 4,300 3876 424
900 755 145 3,800 1.042% 2,158 4,300 3,876 424
500 755 145 3,800 1.042 2,158 4,300 3,876 424
19¢ 129 {61) (800) 3,250 4,050 525 911 386
190 129 (61> (300) 3250 [ § 4,050 525 911 386
466 11,046 6,160
595 3 14,296 7,071
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CITY OF CORNING
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Combining Balance Sheet
June 39, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Intergovernmental Receivable
Interfund Loans Receivables

Due from Other Funds

Other Assets:

Restricted Cash: Loan Repayment

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Total assets

Accounts Payable
Accrued Interest

Due to Other Funds
Other Current Liabilities

Total Habilities

Fund Balances
Unreserved, Undesignated

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.

Total Fund Balances

(Continued)

Exhibit C-1
Animal
Police Control Fire Public Works
Equipment Officer Equipment Equipment Park Park Parkfland
Replacement Replacement Replacement Replacement Acquisition Improvement Acquisition
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
{Fund 071) (Fund 072) (Fund 076) (Fund 078) {Fund 341) (Fund 353) (Fund 355) Totals
6,533 $ 1,060 17,332 35,182 8 208,144 -3 174,513 % 442,764
- - 4,011 - - 5,000 - 9,011
6.533 3 1,060 21,343 35,182 & 208,144 5,000 § 174,513 § 451,775
364 8§ 350 47,308 -5 - - % - % 48,022
364 350 47,308 - - - - 48.022
6,169 710 (25.965) 35,182 208,144 5,000 174,513 403.753
6,169 710 (25,965) 35,182 208,144 5.000 174,513 403,733
6,533 3 1,060 21,343 3 35,182 § 208,144 5,000 % 174,513 § 451,775
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CITY OF CORNING
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Exhibit C-3

Police Equipment Replacement Fand (Ford 071)

Animal Control Officer Replacement Fund (Fund 072)

Fire Equipment Replacement Fund (Fund 076}

Budgpet

‘Variance
Favorable
{Unfrvornble)

Budget

Actual

Variance
Favorable
{Unfavorable)

Variante
Favorable

Budget Actanl (Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Interpovernmental Revenies $
Acquisition Charges snd Fees
Interest
Other

23,985,

"

3,645

(98)
643

Wi N -
22,000 . (22,000)

500 . (500)
26,308 26,308 -

Totnl Revenues

24.009

3.100

3,647

547

43,808 26,308 (22,500)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Goneral Gevernment:
General Government

5300

3,080

2,420

Towl Genaral Government
Public Safety and Judiciary:
Police
Total Public Safety and Judiciary
Transportation:
Streats

3,500

3,080

2,420

AT5TS 47308 67

Total Trmsportation
Cultaral, Parks snd Recreation
Parks and Recreation

47375 47308 67

Tota) Cultural, Parks and Recrention
Community/Economic Development:
Economic Development

Total Community/Econemic Development
Debt Service:
Interest and Other Charges
Cupital Qutlsy

34072

(34072)

33,285 : 33,288

Total Expenditures

34.072

(34,072)

5,500

‘3,080

2,420

$0,660 47,308 33,352

Excess of Revenues Over
{Under) Exponditures

(10,063)

(10.063)

{2,400)

567

2,967

(31,852)| {21,000} 10,852

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Debt Progesds
Opersting Transfors In
Opersting Transfers O

(87.910)

15,000

13,000
(37,910}

- 22,000 22,0600

Total Other Financing
Seurges (Qver)

(87.910)

15,000

(72,510)

M 22.000 22,000

EBxcess of Revenues and Other Sourees Qver
(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses 3

(87.910)

4,937

{82,973)

{2,400)

567

2,967

(31,852) 100018 32,352

FUND BALANCE, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE, AT END OF YEAR

(Continucd)
See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.

1,232

6.16%

143

710
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CITY OF CORNING

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental Rovenuos
Acquisition Charges and Fees
Interest
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Govemment:
General Government
Tetal General Government
Transportation;
Strees
“Total Transportation
Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Parks and Recreation
Totz! Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Community/Econemic Developrment:
Economi¢ Development

Tetal C ity/B i¢ Dovel
Dbt Service:
Interest and Other Charpes
Capieed Onnlay
Total Expenditures
Excess of Rovenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Operating Trensfers In
Operating Transfers Out
Total Other Financing
Sourees (Qver)
Extess of Revenues and Qther Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

FUND BALANCE, AT BEGINNING QF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, AT END OF YEAR.

See accompanying notes to
the basic financiat statements.

Parkland A Fund (Fund 355) Capital Project Fonds
Yariance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorablc} Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

3 -8 - B - % 23985 8 23.985
600 " {600) 22,600 - {22,600)

2.000 429 {1,571) 3,600 1,026 {2,574)

- - - 40,508 74,840 34,332

2,600 429 (2,171} 66,708 69,851 33,143

N - . 5,500 3,080 2.420

. - - 5500 | - 3,080 2420

. - - 47,375 | - 47,308 57

- - - 413751 - 47,308 67

41,500 “ 41,500 47,035 | - 5,634 41,401
41,500 “ 41,500 47035 | - 5,634 41,401

- - “ 66274 | - 45.007 21,267

41,500 - 41,500 166,184 { - 101,029 65,155
(38,500) 429 39,329 (99.476)| - (1,178) 98,258

- - - -1- 37000 37,000
- - - (134,096} - - (134,096}
. - - (134,086)| - 37000 {97,096)

$ (385,900) 429 39,329 {233,572)] - 35822 |8 1,202

174,084 367,931
5 174,513 3 403,753
————_
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CITY OF CORNING
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and Investments
Accounts Regeivable
Inventories
Prepaid Assels

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets:
Construction in Progress
Property, Plant and Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation
Net Capital Asseis

Loan Acquisition Costs
Accumulated Amortization
Net Loan Acquisition Costs

Other Assets:
Reslricted Cash:
Deposits
Loan Repayment
Total Other Assets

Taotal Assets

LIABILITIES

Liabilities:

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages
Due to Oiher Funds
Interest Payzble
Deposits

Current Portion of Long Term Debt

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Interfund Loan Payable

Acerued Compensation for Future Absences

Loan Payable: Mid Valley Bank

Certificates of Participation Payable

Less: Current Portion
Total Long-Tenin Liabilities

Toftal Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Contributed Capital

Investment in capital assets, net
Retained Eamings, Restricted
Retained Earnings, Unrestricted

Total Retained Eamings
Total Net Assels

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity

See accompanying notes to

the basic financial statements.

Exhibit D-1

Sewer Solid Waste Transportation Water
Enierprise Enterprise Airport Cenfer Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
{Fund 610, efc) (Fund 615) {Fund 620, 621) (Fund 625) {Fund 630, efc) Total

$ 694,560 3 83953 3 - % 15448 $ 1,087,102 $ 1,881,063
80,133 23,991 - 685 126,108 236,917

5,116 - - - 56,744 71,860

795,809 107,944 . 16,133 1,269,954 2,189,840
16,141,550 - 3,390,513 5,167 6,663,018 26,200,248
(8,204,955) - {68,264) - (1,896,161) (10,169,380)
7,936,595 - 3,322,249 5,167 4,766,857 16,030,868
27,361 - - - 109,446 136,807
(8,105) - - - (34,644} (43,349

18,656 - - 74,802 93,458

591,720 - - - 386,058 971,778
591,720 - - - 386,058 971,778
9,342,780 107,944 3,322,249 21,300 6,491,671 19,291,944
66,116 110,242 1,534 521 21,188 199,601

2,516 - - - 4,579 7,095

- - 114,150 - - 114,150

70,824 - - - 54,256 125,080

- - - - 67,723 67,723

114,024 . - - - 110,264 224,288
253480 110,242 115,684 521 258,010 131937
24,587 - - - 24,587 49,174
5,984,733 - - - 4,319,804 10,304,537
(93,180) - - - (89.420) (182,660)
5,916,140 - - - 4,254,971 10,171,111
6,169,620 110,242 £15,684 521 4,512,981 10,909,048
1,951,862 - 3,322,249 5,167 447,053 3,726,331
1,241,835 - - - 781,358 2,023,193
(20,537) {2,298) (1£5,6384) 15,612 756,279 633,312
3,173,160 (2.298) 3,206,565 20,719 1,984,650 8,382,396

3 3,173,160 & (2,298) $ 3,206,565 §$ 20,779 § 1,984,690 $ 8,382,896
$ 9,342,780 § 6497671 % 107944 3 3,322249 8 21,300 $ 19291944
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CITY OF CORNING
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Assels
Year Ended June 30, 2012

ExhibitD-2

Sewer Solid Waste Transporfation Water
Enterprise Enterprise Airport Center Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
{Fund 610, eic) {Fund 615) (Fund 620, 621) (Fund 625) __{(Fund 630, etc) Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Service $ 1,548,352 § 423,069 S - S - $ 1,283,720 $§ 3,255,141
Connection fees - - - - 1,725 1,725
Lease and Rents 7,608 - 12,192 10,000 - 29,800
Other Revenue 29,541 - 10,980 7,535 12,569 _ 60,625
Total Operating Revenues 1,583,501 423,069 23,172 17,535 1,298,014 3,347,291
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and Benefits 308,354 - 3,520 - 488,235 800,109
Utilities 91,583 - 6,662 6,123 174,826 279,194
Depreciation 481,680 - 28,861 - 156,591 667,132
Amortization 1,244 - - - 4,975 6,219
Other Expenses 805,974 423,809 19,127 10,147 228,793 1,487,850
Total Operating Expenses 1,688,835 423,309 58,170 16,270 71,053,420 3,240,504
Operating Income {Loss) (103,334) (740) {34,998) 1,265 244,594 106,787
NON-O_PERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Investment Earnings 3,188 99 3 38 2,620 5,948
Interest Expense (265,501) - - - (187,051} {452,552)
Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (262,313) 99 3 38 (184,431} (446,604)
Income Before Transfers {365,647) (641) {34,995) 1,303 60,163 {339,817
Operating Transfers In 216,763 - - - 237,925 454,688
Operating Teansfers Out (216,763) {800) - - (237,925} (455,488)
Changes in net assets (365,647) (1,441) (34,995) 1,303 60,163 {340,617)
NET ASSETS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,538,301 (857) 3,241,560 19476 1,924,537 8,723,517
As Previously Stated
Prior period adjustment - - - - - _ -
As Restated 3,538,801 (857) 3,241,560 19,476 1,924,537 8,723,517
Residual Equity Transfers In - - - - - -
Residual Equity Transfers Out - - - - - -
NET ASSETS, AT END OF YEAR 3 3,073,154 % {2,298 % 3,206,565 $ 20,7?9 3 1,984,700 § 8,382,900

See accompanying nofes to
the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF CORNING
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Combining Statenent of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30,2052

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Other Operating Cash Receipts
Payments to Suppliers
Paymenis to Employees

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers from (to) other funds

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Interest Paid
Repayment of Certificates of Participation
Payments for capital acquisitions

Net cash fused for) capital and
refated financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts of interest

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME {LOSS) FROM
OPERATIONS TO NET CASH PROVIDED
(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Operating Income (Loss)

Adjusiments {o Reconcile Net Income to Net
Cash From (Used For) Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Decrease (Increase} in Accounts Receivable
Decrease (Increase) in Inventory
Decrease (Increase) in Other Assels

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase {Decrease) in Wages Payable
Increase {Decrease) in Accrued Compensation
Increase (Decrease} in Due to Other Funds
Increase (Decrease) in Inferest Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Deposiis
Increase (Decrease) in current liabilities
payable from restricted assets

Net cash from (used for} operating activities

See accompanying notes to
the basic financiat statements.

Exhibit D-3

Sewer Solid Waste Transportation Water
Enterprise Enterprise Airport Center Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
(Fund 610, ete)  (Fund 615) (Fund 620, 621) (Fund 625) {Fund 63_{), ete) Total
1,541,864 419,185 - - 1,249,918 3,210,967
37,149 - 23,172 17,535 12,569 90,425
(873,271} (417.827) {28,783} (16,170) (385,944) (1,721,995)
(308,651) - (3,520} - (487,502} (799,673)
397,091 1,358 (9,131) 1,365 389,041 779,724
- {800) - - - (800)
(265,501) - - - (187,051) (452,552)
(96,681) - - - 506,418 409,737
(23,644) - 4,271 - (678,281} (697,654)
(385,826) - 4,271 - (358,914) (740,469)
3,188 99 3 38 2,620 5,948
14,453 657 (4,857 1,403 32,747 44 403
680,107 83,296 4,857 14,045 1,054,355 1,836,660
3 694,560 S 83,953 § - 8 15,448 1,087,102 $ _ 1,881,063
§ (103334 8 (740) $ (34,998) $ 1,265 244594 $ 106,787
482,924 - 28,861 - 161,566 673,351
(6,488) (3,884) - - {38,871) (49,243)
{156) - - - (562) {(712)
(24,01 7)_ - - - 6 (24,011)
49,572 5,982 1,277 100 16,778 73,709
390 - - - 1,420 L3810
(687) - - - (687) (1,374
- - 4,271 - - @,211)
(1,119) - - - 1,453 334
- - - - 3,344 3,344
$ 397001 § 1,358 § {(9,131) 8 1,365 389,041 % 779,724
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CITY OF CORNING
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2012

ASSETS:

Cash and investments

Receivables:

Intergovernmental

County

Deferred compensation plan assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Fund Balances:

Held in trust for:

Scholarships

Library System

Theater

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.

J.T. Levy Rodgers Ridell
Trust Theater Library
¥Fund Trust Fund

(Fund 4031) (Fund 402) (Fund 403)

3 27422 § 19,753 § 263,559
5 27422 % 19,753 $ 263,559
5 - § -8 -
27,422 - -

- - 263,559

- 19,753 -

27.422 19,753 263,559

3 27422 % 19753 § 263,559

City of Corning Supplemental Section Page 88

3

$

$

Exhibit E-1

Totals

310,734

310,734

e e
A e e
[T T

27,422
263,559
19,753

310,734

310,734
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CITY OF CORNING
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Evded June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest

Total Revenues
Scholarships
Capital Qutlay
Other

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Source (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Bee accompanying notes fo
the basic financial statements.

Totals
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
$ - 3 - -
2,000 466 (1,534)
2.000 466 (1,534)
500 500 -
27,192 2,263 24,929
27.692 2,763 24.929
(25,692) (2.297) 23.395
- (2,436) (2.436)
- {2.436) (2,436)
$ (25,692) (4.733) s 20,959
315,467
$ 310,734
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OTHER REPORTS AND SCHEDULES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS




Donald Rl Reynolds
Certified P ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂcccumam

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Corning
Corning, California

I have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Corning, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements
and have issued my report thereon dated January 31, 2013. T conducted my audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standatds, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the City of Corning is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, In planning and performing my audit, I considered the City of
Corning's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing my auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing my opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting,
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s mternal control
over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis,

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited puz pose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. 1 did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that 1
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

1438 Oregon Street, P.O. Box 994508 Redding, CA 96099-4508 (530) 246-2834 fax (530) 244-0331
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The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Corning
Corning, California

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Corning’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, confracts, and grants agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not
express such an opinion, The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that ate
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is infended solely for the information and use of the City Council, City management and
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be, and should not be,
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

'@a,&«;&,\&»

Deonald R. Reynolds
Certified Public Accountant
January 31, 2013
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Donald R! Reynolds

Certified Pg}gi‘i%iAccountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable City Council
City of Corning
Corning, California

Compliance

I have audited the City of Corning’s compliance with the types of compliance requiremnents described
in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
would have a direct and material effect on the City of Corning’s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2012. City of Corning’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
federal programs is the responsibility of City of Corning’s management. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on City of Corning’s compliance based on my audit.

1 conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Complroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Prafit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that T plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about City of Corning’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as I considered necessary in the circumstances. I believe that my audit
provides a reasonable basis for my opinion, My audit does not provide a legal determination on City
of Corning’s compliance with those requirements.

In my opinion, City of Corning complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred fo
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.

P.O. Box 994508, Redding, California 96099-4508 . (530) 246-2834 . FAX (530) 244-0331

City of Corning Special Reports Section Page 93



The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Corning
Corning, California

Internal Contrel Over Compliance

The management of City of Corning is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing my audit, I considered City of
Corning’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program in ordet to determine my auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing my opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, I do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal conirol over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented ot detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
contro} that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Idid not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance and its operation that I consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above,

This report is intended for the information of the City Council, City management and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties,

Do RS
Donald R, Reynolds

Cettified Public Accountant
January 31, 2013
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Donald R{ Reynolds

Certified P

Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE
OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Honorable City Council
City of Corning
Corning, California

I have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Corning, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and
have issued my report thereon dated January 31, 2013 These financial statements arc the
responsibility of the City of Corning's management. My responsibility was to express an opinion of
these financial statements based on my audit,

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards for financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133, “Audits of State and Local Governments and Non Profit Organizations."
Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. Anauditalso includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audit provided a reasonable basis for
my opinion,

My audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a
whole and on the combining financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial
Assistance is presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements of the City of Corning, The information in this schedule has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose and combining financial
statements and, in my opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

&&Kﬁw&

Donald R. Reyno
Certified Public Accountants
January 31, 2013

P.O. Box 994508, Redding, California 96099-4508 . (530) 246-2834 . FAX (530) 244-0331
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CITY OF CORNING

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Grantor's Disbursements/
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Program Title Number Number Expenditures
1.8, Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through State Department of Housing & Community
Development:
Community Development Block Grant 14228  08-STBG-4828 3,673
Total U.S. Depariment of Housing & Urban Development 3,673
U.8 Department of Agriculture
Passed through Siate Department of Housing & Community
Development:
Rural Utility Service *#* 10,781 N/A 613,000
Total U.8. Department of Agriculture 613,000
U.S8. Department of Transportation
Passed through State Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction 20,205 N/A 28,181
Passed through the State Office of Traffic Safety
Traffic Safety Grant 20.600 N/A 3,509
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 31,690
Total Expenditure of Federal Awards $ 648,363

* Major Program
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CITY OF CORNING
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all
federal awards programs of the City of Crescent City. The City reporting entity is defined in
Note 1 to the City's basic financial statements. All Federal awards received from federal
agencies as well as federal awards passed through other government agencies are included
in the schedule.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared on a basis
other than that used to record transactions in the accounting records and as reported in the
basic financial statements. Sources of information for preparation of the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards varies, depending on the accounting practices and
reporting requirements of the departments implementing the program

Relationship to Financial Statements

The amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
agree, in all material respects, to amounts reported within the City's financial statements.
Federal award revenues are reported principally in the City's financial statements as
intergovernmental revenues in the General and Special Revenue funds.
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CITY OF CORNING
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SECTION 1

Financial Statemenis Summary of Auditor's Results

a.) Type of auditor's report issued on financial statements Unqualified

b.) Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified: No
Significant Deficiencies indentified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses: No

¢.) Noncompliance which is material to the financial
statements: No

Federal Awards

d.) Internal control over major programs:

Material weaknesses identified: No
Significant Deficiencies indentified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses: No

e.) Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unqualified

f) Any audit findings which are required to be reported

" under Section .510(a) of OMB Circular A-133: No
g.) The dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type "A" and Type "B" programs was $300,000
h.) Program identified as a major program
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program
10.781 Rural Utility Services

i) Auditee qualified as a low risk auditee under Section
0.530 of OMB Circular A-133: No.
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CITY OF CORNING
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SECTION 2
None Reported

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported
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CITY OF CORNING
SEWER ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Combining Balance Shect
June 30,2012

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Investments
Agccounts Receivable
Inventories
Total Current Assets

Capital Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Accunulated Depreciation
Wet Capital Assets

Loan Acquisition Costs
Accumulated Amortization
Net Loan Acquisition Costs

Other Assets:
Restricted Cash:
Loan Repayment
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages
Interest Payable
Current Portion of Long Term Debt
Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Linbilities
Interfund Loan Payable
Acerued Compensation for Future Absences
Certificates of Participation Poyable
Less: Current Portion
Total Long-Term Lisbilities

Total Liabilities

Fund Equity:

Contributed Capital

Retained Earnings:
Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets
Total Net Assets

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.

2005
cop
(Fund 633)

TOTAL
Sewer

Enterprisc

Fund

694,560
86,133
15,116

795,809

16,141,550
(8,204,.955)

7,956,595

27,361
(8,705)

18,656

38,892

(3

569,350

38822

)

569,350

33,822

9320410

86,116
2,516
70,824
114,024

253,480

24587
5,984,733
(93,180}

5,916,140

6,169,620

1,951,862
1,241,829
{20,557y

3,173,154

WW.IP.
Sewer Capital Capital Sewer Capital
Tmprovement WWTP Reph t Repl ent 2005
Fund EXP. Fond Fund Fund cor
{Fund 347) (Fund 348) (Fund 380} (Fund 381) (Fund 610) (Fund 681)
- 8 (378.063) $ 204,774 8 104,692 760,573 §
- - - - 26,133
- - “ - 15116
- (378.063) 204,774 104,692 861,922
- 4,453,848 - - 11,687,702
- (801.101) u - (7403.854>
- 3652747 - - 4 283 8438
- - - - 27,361
- - - - (8.705)
- - - - 18,656
- 3 3,274,684 § 204,774 8§ 104.692 5,184,426
9% 8 - 8 - 8 36 62,081
- - - - 2.516
- 42477 - - 28,347
- 46,000 - - 68,024
3,969 38,477 - 36 160,968
- (381,370) - - 381,370
- - - - 24,587
- 3,998,000 - - 1,986,733
- {46,000} - - {47,180)
- 3,570,630 - - 2,345,510
3,959 5,659,107 - 36 2,506,478
- (345,253} - - 2297113
(3.999) 342200 204,774 104,656 -
- - - - (20,537)
{3.999) (3,053) 204,774 104,656 2276578
{3999} § (3.053) § 204,774 & 104,656 S 2276578 §

38822 8

[ L0 N PR

3,173,154
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CITY OF CORNING
WATER ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Combining Balance Sheet
Jume 30, 2012

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable
Inrventories

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets:
Construction in Progress
Property, Plant and Equipment
Agcumulated Depreciation
Net Property, Plant and Equipment

Loan Acquisition Costs
Accumulated Amortization
Net Loan Acquisition Costs

Other Assets:
Restricted Cash:
Loar Repayment
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Acerued Wages
Interest Payable
Deposits
Current Portion of Long Term Debt
Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Acerued Compensation for Future Absences
Certificates of Participation Payable
Less: Current Portion
Total Long-Term Lizbilitics
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Investment i Capital Assets
Restricted
TUnrestricted
Total Net Assets

See accompanying notes to
the basic financial statements.

Water Capital ‘Water Capital 1999 2005 TOTAL
Improvement Replacerent Cor cor ‘Water
Fund Fend Fund Fund Fund Enterprise
(Fund 346) (Fund 383} (Fund 630) (674,675) (682,684) Funds
74466 $ 318,034 & 664,727 $ - 8 - 1,057,227
- - 126,108 - - 126,108
. - 56,744 - - 56,744
74466 318.034 847,579 - - 1,240,079
- - 6,663,018 - - 6,663,018
- - (1,896,161} - - (1,896.161)
- - 4,766,857 - - 4,766,857
- - 109,446 - - 109,446
- - (34,644 - - (34.644)
. - 74,802 - - 74,802
- - - 230.775 155,283 386,058
- - " 230,775 155,283 386,058
74,466 § 318034 $ 5680238 & 230,775 § 155283 6,467.796
- 3 5 21,180 - - 21,188
“ - 4,579 - - 4,579
- - 54,256 - - 54256
" - 67,723 - - 67,723
- - 110.264 - - 110,264
- 8 258,002 - - 258,010
- - 24,587 - - 24,587
- - 4319,804 - - 4,319,804
“ - (89.420) - - (89,420}
- - 4254971 - - 4,254,971
- 5 4,512,973 - - 4,512,981
- - 447,053 - - 447,053
74,466 318,026 - 230,775 155,283 778,550
- - 729212 - - 729212
74,466 $ 318,026 §$ 1,176,265 3§ 230,775 % 155283 1,954,815
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